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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934
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OR

[0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF

1934
For the transition period from to
Commission file number 1-7677
[
LSB Industries, Inc.
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware 73-1015226
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(405) 235-4546

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)
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(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report.)

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [ No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to
be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required
to submit and post such files). Yes [ No



Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See

2«

definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer O

Non-accelerated filer [0 (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company O
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). [ Yes No

The number of shares outstanding of the Registrant’s voting common stock, as of October 30, 2015 was 22,811,262 shares, excluding 4,320,462 shares held
as treasury stock.
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PART 1
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Information at September 30, 2015 is unaudited)
Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories:
Finished goods
Work in progress
Raw materials
Total inventories
Supplies, prepaid items and other:
Prepaid insurance
Precious metals
Supplies
Prepaid and refundable income taxes
Other
Total supplies, prepaid items and other
Deferred income taxes
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Other assets:
Noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents
Noncurrent restricted investments
Intangible and other, net
Total other assets

(Continued on following page)

September 30, December 31,
2015 2014
(In Thousands)

$ 23958 $ 186,811

— 365
15,000 14,500
90,064 88,074
24,170 28,218

2,743 2,763
26,782 25,605
53,695 56,586

2,611 13,752
14,398 12,838
17,220 15,927

8,709 7,387

4,175 5,438
47,113 55,342
20,385 17,204

250,215 418,882
874,575 619,205

— 45,969

— 25,000
32,204 27,949
32,204 98,918

$1,156,994  $1,137,005
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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued)
(Information at September 30, 2015 is unaudited)

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Short-term financing

Accrued and other liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Noncurrent accrued and other liabilities
Deferred income taxes

Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)

Stockholders’ equity:
Series B 12% cumulative, convertible preferred stock, $100 par value; 20,000 shares issued and outstanding
Series D 6% cumulative, convertible Class C preferred stock, no par value; 1,000,000 shares issued and outstanding
Common stock, $.10 par value; 75,000,000 shares authorized, 27,131,724 shares issued (26,968,212 shares at
December 31, 2014)
Capital in excess of par value
Retained earnings

Less treasury stock, at cost:
Common stock, 4,320,462 shares
Total stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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September 30, December 31,

2015 2014

(In Thousands)

$ 110,950 $ 81,456
1,204 11,955
46,317 51,166
23,849 10,680
182,320 155,257
472,599 446,638
17,863 17,934
73,182 83,128
2,000 2,000
1,000 1,000
2,713 2,697
174,500 170,537
259,191 286,188
439,404 462,422
28,374 28,374
411,030 434,048
$1,156,994 $1,137,005
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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)

Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Three Months Nine Months
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)
Net sales $157,685 $171,046  $534,202 $551,233
Cost of sales 144,406 146,660 443,682 429,256
Gross profit 13,279 24,386 90,520 121,977
Selling, general and administrative expense 29,382 25,208 89,598 77,364
Provision for (recovery of) losses on accounts receivable (161) 70 352 (86)
Impairment of natural gas properties 39,670 — 39,670 —
Property insurance recoveries in excess of losses incurred — — — (5,147)
Other expense (income), net (725) 305 (996) 1,418
Operating income (loss) (54,887) (1,197) (38,104) 48,428
Interest expense, net 877 5,079 6,505 17,458
Non-operating other income, net (23) (89) (107) (242)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before provision (benefit) for income taxes and equity in
earnings of affiliate (55,741) (6,187) (44,502) 31,212

Provision (benefit) for income taxes (21,982) (2,415) (17,842) 12,286
Equity in earnings of affiliate — — — (79)
Income (loss) from continuing operations (33,759) (3,772) (26,660) 19,005
Net loss from discontinued operations 4 5 37 28
Net income (loss) (33,763) (3,777) (26,697) 18,977
Dividends on preferred stocks — — 300 300
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock $(33,763) $ (3,777) $(26,997) $ 18,677
Weighted-average common shares:

Basic 22,799 22,596 22,741 22,558

Diluted 22,799 22,596 22,741 23,662
Income (loss) per common share:

Basic $ (148 $ (017 $ (1199 $ 0.83

Diluted $ (148 $ (017) $ (1199 $ 0.80

See accompanying notes.
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Balance at December 31, 2014
Net loss

LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015

Dividends paid on preferred stocks

Stock-based compensation
Exercise of stock options
Common stock issued for services

Excess income tax benefit associated with stock-based

compensation
Balance at September 30, 2015

Non-
Common Redeemable Common Capital in Treasury
Stock Preferred Stock Par Excess of Retained Stock-
Shares Stock Value Par Value Earnings Common Total
(In Thousands)
26,968 $ 3,000 $ 2,697 $170,537 $286,188 $(28,374) $434,048
(26,697) (26,697)
(300) (300)
1,443 1,443
160 16 1,769 1,785
4 155 155
596 596
27,132 $ 3,000 $2,713 $174,500 $259,191  $(28,374) $411,030

See accompanying notes.
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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Cash flows from continuing operating activities
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by continuing operating activities:
Deferred income taxes
Gains on property insurance recoveries associated with property, plant and equipment
Impairment of natural gas properties
Depreciation, depletion and amortization of property, plant and equipment
Other
Cash provided (used) by changes in assets and liabilities (net of effects of discontinued operations):
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid insurance
Prepaid and accrued income taxes
Other supplies, prepaid items and other
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Other current and noncurrent liabilities

Net cash provided by continuing operating activities

Cash flows from continuing investing activities
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from property insurance recovery associated with property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment
Proceeds from short-term investments
Purchases of short-term investments
Proceeds from noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents
Deposits of noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents
Proceeds from noncurrent restricted investments
Purchase of noncurrent restricted investments
Other investing activities

Net cash used by continuing investing activities

Cash flows from continuing financing activities
Proceeds from revolving debt facility
Payments on revolving debt facility
Proceeds from long-term debt, net of fees
Payments on long-term debt
Payments of debt issuance costs
Payments on short-term financing
Proceeds from exercises of stock options
Excess income tax benefit associated with stock-based compensation
Dividends paid on preferred stocks
Net cash provided (used) by continuing financing activities
Cash flows of discontinued operations:
Operating cash flows
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See accompanying notes.
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2015 2014
(In Thousands)
$ (26,697) $ 18977
(13,127) 11,542
= (5,147)
39,670 —
29,951 26,421
3,527 2,461
5,156 (7,326)
1,849 (917)
11,141 11,619
(1,322) 5,593
(3,872) 1,454
5,043 5,160
(8,202) (8,131)
(614) (4,807)
42,503 56,899
(300,763) (164,160)
— 5,147
3 220
24,500 —
(25,000) (14,500)
45,969 169,276
— (165,106)
25,000 209,990
— (50,000)
(1,445) (1,814)
(231,736) (10,947)
15,101 —
(1,800) —
31,047 —
(9,064) (7,853)
(121) —
(10,751) (12,236)
1,785 649
596 —
(300) (300)
26,493 (19,740)
(113) (138)
(162,853) 26,074
186,811 143,750
$ 23,958 $ 169,824
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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For a complete discussion of our significant accounting policies, refer to the notes to our audited consolidated financial statements included in our Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2014 (“2014 Form 10-K”), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on February 27, 2015.

See Note 14 — Subsequent Events concerning certain events, including a commitment for financing obtained from an investor.

Basis of Consolidation and Presentation - LSB Industries, Inc. (“LSB”) and its subsidiaries (the “Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our”) are consolidated in the
accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements. We are involved in manufacturing operations. We are primarily engaged in the manufacture and
sale of chemical products (the “Chemical Business”) and the manufacture and sale of water source and geothermal heat pumps and air handling products (the
“Climate Control Business”). LSB is a holding company with no significant operations or assets other than cash, cash equivalents, and investments in its
subsidiaries. Our Chemical Business’ ownership of working interests in natural gas properties is accounted for as an undivided interest, whereby we reflect
our proportionate share of the underlying assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Our working interest represents our share of the costs and expenses
incurred primarily to develop the underlying leaseholds and to produce natural gas, while our net revenue interest represents our share of the revenues from
the sale of natural gas. The net revenue interest is less than our working interest as the result of royalty interest due to others. We are not the operator of these
natural gas properties. See discussion below under “Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.” Entities that are 20% to 50% owned and for which we have
significant influence are accounted for on the equity method. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

In the opinion of management, the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company as of September 30, 2015 and for the three and
nine month periods ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 include all adjustments and accruals, consisting of normal, recurring accrual adjustments, which are
necessary for a fair presentation of the results for the interim periods. These interim results are not necessarily indicative of results for a full year due, in part,
to the seasonality of our sales of agricultural products and the timing of performing our major plant maintenance activities and the impairment charge
recognized as of September 30, 2015 as discussed below under “Impairment of Long —Lived Assets.” Our selling seasons for agricultural products are
primarily during the spring and fall planting seasons, which typically extend from March through June and from September through November.

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with United States (“U.S.”) generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) have been condensed or omitted in this Form 10-Q pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC. These condensed
consolidated financial statements should be read in connection with our audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our 2014 Form
10-K.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Investments, which consist of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, are considered cash
equivalents.

Short-Term Investments - Investments, which consist of certificates of deposit with an original maturity of no more than 26 weeks, are considered short-
term investments. These investments are carried at cost which approximates fair value.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset (asset group) may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of an asset (asset group)
exceeds the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset (asset group) and its eventual disposition. If assets to be held
and used are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is the amount by which the carrying amounts of the assets exceed the fair values of
the assets as measured by the present value of future net cash flows expected to be generated by the assets or their appraised value. As it relates to natural gas
properties, proven natural gas properties are reviewed for impairment on a field-by-field basis and nonproducing leasehold costs are reviewed for impairment
on a property-by-property basis.
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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Unaudited)

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

As of September 30, 2015, our Chemical Business recognized an impairment charge of $39.7 million to write-down the carrying value of our working interest
in natural gas properties in the Marcellus Shale region to their estimated fair value of $22.5 million. The impairment charge represented the amount by which
the carrying value of these natural gas properties exceeded the estimated fair value and was therefore not recoverable. The estimated fair value was
determined based on estimated future discounted net cash flows, a Level 3 input, using estimated production and prices at which we reasonably expect natural
gas will be sold, including information provided by our independent consulting petroleum engineer. The impairment was due to the decline in forward prices
for natural gas, large natural gas price differentials in the Marcellus Shale region and changes in the drilling plans of these natural gas properties.

The non-cash impairment charge was included in the condensed consolidated statements of operations line item impairment of natural gas properties for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2015.

Noncurrent Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - Noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents consisted of balances that were designated by us for
specific purposes relating to capital projects.

Noncurrent Restricted Investments - Noncurrent restricted investments consisted of investment balances that were designated by us for specific purposes
relating to capital projects. The balance included investments in certificates of deposits with an original maturity no longer than approximately 26 weeks. The
investments in certificates of deposits were carried at cost, which approximated fair value.

Concentration of Credit Risks for Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments at Financial Institutions - Financial instruments relating to cash, cash
equivalents, and investments (certificates of deposits) potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk. At September 30, 2015, the total balance of these
financial instruments exceeded the FDIC-insured limits by approximately $14.8 million. All of these financial instruments were held by financial institutions
within the U.S.

Recognition of Insurance Recoveries - If an insurance claim relates to a recovery of our losses, we recognize the recovery when it is probable and
reasonably estimable. If our insurance claim relates to a contingent gain, we recognize the recovery when it is realized or realizable and earned. Amounts
recoverable from our insurance carriers, if any, are included in accounts receivable. An insurance recovery in excess of recoverable costs relating to a
business interruption claim, if any, is a reduction to cost of sales. An insurance recovery in excess of recoverable costs relating to a property insurance claim,
if any, is included in property insurance recoveries in excess of losses incurred.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standard Update 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Topic 606), which will supersede nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under GAAP. The standard’s core principle is that a company will
recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. We are evaluating our existing revenue recognition policies to determine whether any contracts in the scope
of the guidance will be affected by the new requirements. The effects may include identifying performance obligations in existing arrangements, estimating
the amount of variable consideration to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each separate performance obligation. In July
2015, the FASB approved a one-year deferral of the effective date of this standard with the option to early adopt but not before the original effective date. As
a result, the effective date for us of this standard is January 1, 2018, with the option to adopt a year earlier. The standard allows for either “full retrospective”
adoption, meaning the standard is applied to all of the periods presented, or “modified retrospective” adoption, meaning the standard is applied only to the
most current period presented in the financial statements. We are currently evaluating the transition method that will be elected.
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Note 2: Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Numerator:

Net income (loss):
Dividends on Series B Preferred
Dividends on Series D Preferred

Total dividends on preferred stocks
Numerator for basic net income (loss) per common share -
net income (loss) applicable to common stock
Dividends on preferred stocks assumed to be
converted, if dilutive
Numerator for diluted net income (loss) per common share

Denominator:
Denominator for basic net income (loss) per common
share - weighted-average shares
Effect of dilutive securities:
Convertible preferred stocks
Stock options
Dilutive potential common shares
Denominator for dilutive net income (loss) per common
share - adjusted weighted-average shares and assumed
conversions

Basic net income (loss) per common share

LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)
$  (33,763) $  (3,777) $  (26,697) $ 18,977
— — (240) (240)
— — (60) (60)
— — (300) (300)
(33,763) (3,777) (26,997) 18,677
— — 300 300
$ (33,763) $  (3,777) $  (26,697) $ 18,977
22,799,007 22,595,634 22,741,012 22,557,935
— — — 916,666
— — — 187,026
— — — 1,103,692
22,799,007 22,595,634 22,741,012 23,661,627
$ (1.48) $ (0.17) $ (1.19) $ 0.83
$ (1.48) $ (0.17) $ (1.19) $ 0.80

Diluted net income (loss) per common share

The following weighted-average shares of securities were not included in the computation of diluted net income (loss) per common share as their effect would

have been antidilutive:

Convertible preferred stocks
Stock options

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
15 2014 2015 2014
916,666 916,666 916,666 —
905,257 673,415 897,690 335,757

1,821,923 1,590,081 1,814,356 335,757

10
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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Unaudited)

Note 3: Inventories

At September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, inventory reserves for certain slow-moving inventory items (Climate Control Business products) were
$1,855,000 and $1,653,000, respectively. In addition, because costs exceeded the net realizable value, inventory adjustments for certain nitrogen-based
inventories provided by our Chemical Business were $2,784,000 and $1,976,000 at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

Note 4: Current and Noncurrent Accrued and Other Liabilities

September 30, December 31,
2015 2014
(In Thousands)

Accrued warranty costs $ 10,129 $ 83817
Accrued payroll and benefits 9,090 8,743
Deferred revenue on extended warranty contracts 8,380 7,806
Accrued interest 5,686 13,888
Customer deposits 5,297 6,833
Other 25,598 23,013
64,180 69,100

Less noncurrent portion 17,863 17,934
Current portion of accrued and other liabilities $ 46,317 $ 51,166

Note 5: Accrued Warranty Costs

Our Climate Control Business sells equipment that has an expected life, under normal circumstances and use, which extends over several years. As such, we
provide warranties after equipment shipment/start-up covering defects in materials and workmanship. Generally, for commercial/institutional products, the
base warranty coverage for most of the manufactured equipment in the Climate Control Business is limited to eighteen months from the date of shipment or
twelve months from the date of start-up, whichever is shorter, and to ninety days for spare parts. For residential products, the base warranty coverage for
manufactured equipment in the Climate Control Business is limited to ten years from the date of shipment for material and to five years from the date of
shipment for labor associated with the repair. The warranty provides that most equipment is required to be returned to the factory or an authorized
representative, and the warranty is limited to the repair and replacement of the defective product, with a maximum warranty of the refund of the purchase
price. Furthermore, companies within the Climate Control Business generally disclaim and exclude warranties related to merchantability or fitness for any
particular purpose and disclaim and exclude any liability for consequential or incidental damages. In some cases, the customer may purchase, or a specific
product may be sold with, an extended warranty. The above discussion is generally applicable to such extended warranties, but variations do occur depending
upon specific contractual obligations, certain system components, and local laws.
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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Unaudited)

Note 5: Accrued Warranty Costs (continued),

Changes in our product warranty obligation (accrued warranty costs) are as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In Thousands)
Balance at beginning of period $ 9,596 $ 7,701 $ 8,817 $ 7,297
Amounts charged to SG&A 2,372 1,926 6,892 5,621
Costs incurred (1,839) (1,458) (5,580) (4,749)
Balance at end of period $10,129 $ 8,169 $10,129 $ 8,169

Note 6: Asset Retirement Obligations

Currently, we have various legal requirements related to operations of our Chemical Business facilities, including the disposal of wastewater generated at
certain of these facilities. Additionally, we have certain facilities in our Chemical Business that contain asbestos insulation around certain piping and heated
surfaces, which we plan to maintain or replace, as needed, with non-asbestos insulation through our standard repair and maintenance activities to prevent
deterioration. Currently, there is insufficient information to estimate the fair value for most of our asset retirement obligations (“ARO”). In addition, we
currently have no plans to discontinue the use of these facilities, and the remaining life of the facilities is indeterminable. As a result, a liability for only a
minimal amount relating to AROs associated with these facilities has been established. However, we will continue to review these obligations and record a
liability when a reasonable estimate of the fair value can be made. In addition, our Chemical Business owns working interests in certain natural gas properties.
We recognized AROs associated with the obligation to plug and abandon wells when the natural gas reserves in the wells are depleted. At September 30, 2015
and December 31, 2014, our accrued liability for AROs was $274,000 and $340,000, respectively.

Note 7: Long-Term Debt

Our long-term debt consists of the following:

September 30, December 31,
2015 2014
(In Thousands)
Working Capital Revolver Loan, with a current interest rate of 3.75% (A) $ 13,301 $ —
7.75% Senior Secured Notes due 2019 (B) 425,000 425,000
Secured Promissory Note due 2016, with a current interest rate of 3.33% 17,615 22,814
Secured Promissory Note due 2021, with a current interest rate of 5.25% (C) 16,189 —
Secured Promissory Note due 2022, with a current interest rate of 4.21% (D) 15,000 —
Other, with a current weighted-average interest rate of 4.50%, most of which is secured
primarily by machinery and equipment 9,343 9,504
496,448 457,318
Less current portion of long-term debt 23,849 10,680
Long-term debt due after one year $ 472,599 $ 446,638

(A) In June 2015, the working capital revolver loan (as amended, the “Working Capital Revolver Loan”) was amended, by which the lender released its
second-priority security interest and liens in collateral that also secures, on a first priority basis, the 7.75% Senior Secured Notes due 2019 (“Senior
Secured Notes”). The amendment also amends the definition of Permitted Investments to include investments that are made:

. To the extent that the Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the amendment) does not exceed 2.5 to 1.0;
. In amounts not to exceed 50% of the cumulative consolidated net income or loss since August 7, 2013;

. To permit $35 million in joint ventures; and

. To permit $50 million in our subsidiary, Zena Energy L.L.C. (“Zena”)

12
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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Unaudited)

Note 7: Long-Term Debt (continued)

The amendment also provides that we can incur additional indebtedness if the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (as defined in the amendment) is greater than 2.0
to 1.0.

Our ability to make permitted investments or incur indebtedness is conditioned upon our not being in default and having at least 20% of the maximum
revolver commitment or $20 million, whichever is greater, being available.

The Working Capital Revolver Loan continues to provide (a) advances up to $100 million, which are based on specified percentages of eligible accounts
receivable and inventories (b), up to $15 million of letters of credit, the outstanding amount of which reduces the availability under the Working Capital
Revolver Loan, and (c) the maturity date is April 13, 2018.

(B) The Senior Secured Notes bear interest at the rate of 7.75% per year and mature on August 1, 2019. Interest is to be paid semiannually on February 1st
and August 1st. The Senior Secured Notes are general senior secured obligations of LSB. The Senior Secured Notes are jointly and severally and fully
and unconditionally guaranteed by all of LSB’s current wholly-owned subsidiaries, with all of the guarantees, except one, being senior secured
guarantees and one being a senior unsecured guarantee. The Senior Secured Notes rank equally in right of payment to all of LSB’s and the guarantors’
existing and future senior secured debt, including the Working Capital Revolver Loan, and are senior in right of payment to all of LSB’s and the
guarantors’ future subordinated indebtedness. LSB does not have independent assets or operations.

(C) The secured promissory note due 2021 (the “Secured Promissory Note due 2021”) is an agreement between one of our subsidiaries, El Dorado
Chemical Company (“EDC”), a subsidiary within our Chemical Business, and a lender for an original principal amount of approximately $16.2 million.
The Secured Promissory Note due 2021 bears interest at the rate of 5.25% per year and matures on March 26, 2021. Interest only is payable monthly for
the first 12 months of the term. Principal and interest are payable monthly for the remaining term of the Secured Promissory Note due 2021. This
Secured Promissory Note due 2021 is secured by a natural gas pipeline being constructed at the El Dorado Facility and is guaranteed by LSB.

(D) On September 16, 2015, El Dorado Ammonia L.L.C. (“EDA”), a subsidiary within our Chemical Business, entered into a secured promissory note due
2022 (the “Secured Promissory Note due 2022”) for the construction financing of an ammonia storage tank and related systems with an initial funding
received of $15.0 million and a maximum principal note amount of $19.8 million. The remainder of the funding under the Secured Promissory Note
due 2022 is expected to be drawn upon completion of the ammonia storage tank, but in any event by May 2016 (the “Loan Conversion Date”). Up to
the Loan Conversion Date, EDA will make monthly interest payments on the outstanding principal borrowed.

On the Loan Conversion Date, the outstanding principal balance will be converted to a seven year secured term loan requiring equal monthly principal and
interest payments. In addition, a final balloon payment equal to the remaining outstanding principal (or 30% of the outstanding principal balance on the Loan
Conversion Date) is required on the maturity date. The Secured Promissory Note due 2022 bears interest at a rate that is based on the monthly LIBOR rate
plus 4.0% and matures in May 2022. The Secured Promissory Note due 2022 is secured by the ammonia tank and related systems and is guaranteed by LSB.

EDA may prepay all of the principal amount of the Secured Promissory Note due 2022 from the day following the first anniversary date of the Loan
Conversion Date. A prepayment premium is required from the day following the first anniversary date of the Loan Conversion Date beginning at 1.114% and
ending at 0.031%, a month prior to the maturity date.

Note 8: Commitments and Contingencies

Termination of Sales Commitment - Ammonium nitrate supply agreement—Pursuant to a long-term cost-plus supply agreement, EDC agreed to supply
Orica International Pte Ltd (“Orica”) with an annual minimum of 240,000 tons of industrial grade AN produced at our El Dorado Facility (the “Orica
Agreement”). The Orica Agreement included a provision for Orica to pay for product not taken. The Orica Agreement also included a required notice of
termination of one year, with the termination date to be no sooner than April 9, 2015. On March 31, 2014, EDC sent to Orica the required one-year notice that
EDC would not renew the Orica Agreement. As a result, the Orica Agreement expired on April 9, 2015.
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Note 8: Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Planned Capital Additions — A subsidiary of EDC is party to various agreements with Leidos Constructors, LLC (“Leidos”) and others to engineer, procure
and construct an ammonia plant and certain support facilities.

EDC is party to an agreement with Weatherly Inc. for the licensing, engineering, and procurement of major manufacturing equipment for a new 65% strength
nitric acid plant to be constructed at our El Dorado Facility (the “Nitric Acid Plant”). EDC is also party to various agreements with Leidos and others to
engineer, procure and construct the Nitric Acid Plant, a nitric acid concentrator and certain support facilities at the El Dorado Facility.

The estimated cost for these projects ranges from $732 million to $755 million (excluding capitalized interest and contingency), of which $531 million has
been incurred and capitalized at September 30, 2015.

Natural Gas Purchase Commitments — See Note 9 — Derivatives, Hedges, Financial Instruments and Carbon Credits for our commitments relating to
derivative contracts and carbon credits (accounted for on a mark-to-market basis) at September 30, 2015. During September 2015, certain subsidiaries within
the Chemical Business entered into contracts to purchase natural gas for anticipated production needs at certain of our chemical facilities. Since these
contracts are considered normal purchases because they provide for the purchase of natural gas that will be delivered in quantities expected to be used over a
reasonable period of time in the normal course of business and are documented as such, these contracts are exempt from the accounting and reporting
requirements relating to derivatives. At September 30, 2015, our natural gas contracts, which are exempt from mark-to-market accounting, included the firm
purchase commitments of approximately 6.1 million MMBtu of natural gas. These contracts extend through December 2016 at a weighted-average cost of
$2.96 per MMBtu ($18.1 million) and a weighted-average market value of $2.74 per MMBtu ($16.8 million).

Legal Matters - Following is a summary of certain legal matters involving the Company:

A. Environmental Matters

Our facilities and operations are subject to numerous federal, state and local environmental laws and to other laws regarding health and safety matters
(collectively, the “Environmental and Health Laws”). In particular, the manufacture, production and distribution of products by our Chemical Business are
activities that entail environmental and public health risks and impose obligations under the Environmental and Health Laws, many of which provide for
certain performance obligations, substantial fines and criminal sanctions for violations. There can be no assurance that we will not incur material costs or
liabilities in complying with such laws or in paying fines or penalties for violation of such laws. The Environmental and Health Laws and related enforcement
policies have in the past resulted, and could in the future result, in significant compliance expenses, cleanup costs (for our sites or third-party sites where our
wastes were disposed of), penalties or other liabilities relating to the handling, manufacture, use, emission, discharge or disposal of hazardous or toxic
materials at or from our facilities or the use or disposal of certain of its chemical products.

Historically, significant expenditures have been incurred by subsidiaries within our Chemical Business in order to comply with the Environmental and Health
Laws, and significant expenditures are expected to be incurred in the future. We will also be obligated to manage certain discharge water outlets and monitor
groundwater contaminants at our Chemical Business facilities should we discontinue the operations of a facility. We do not operate the natural gas wells
where we own a working interest and compliance with Environmental and Health Laws is controlled by others, with our Chemical Business being responsible
for its proportionate share of the costs involved. As of September 30, 2015, our accrued liabilities for environmental matters totaled $452,000 relating
primarily to the matters discussed below. It is reasonably possible that a change in the estimate of our liability could occur in the near term. Also, see
discussion in Note 6 - Asset Retirement Obligations.

1.  Discharge Water Matters

Each of our chemical manufacturing facilities generates process wastewater, which may include cooling tower and boiler water quality control streams,
contact storm water (rain water inside the facility area that picks up contaminants) and miscellaneous spills and leaks from process equipment. The process
water discharge, storm-water runoff and miscellaneous spills and leaks are governed by various permits generally issued by the respective state environmental
agencies as authorized and overseen by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”). These permits limit the type and amount of effluents
that can be discharged and control the method of such discharge. The following are discharge water matters in relation to the respective state discharge water
permits.
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Note 8: Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

The Pryor Chemical Facility (the “PCC Facility”) holds a permit to inject wastewater into an on-site well that is valid until 2018. The Oklahoma Department
of Environmental Quality (“ODEQ”) has indicated that the permit may not be renewed and PCC may have to find an alternative means of disposal after the
permit expires. PCC is continuing to discuss disposal possibilities both internally and with the ODEQ.

The El Dorado Facility is subject to a state National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) discharge water permit issued by the Arkansas
Department of Environmental Quality (“ADEQ”). The El Dorado Facility is currently operating under an NPDES discharge water permit, which became
effective in 2004. In 2010, a preliminary draft of a discharge water permit renewal for the El Dorado Facility, which contains more restrictive limits, was
issued by the ADEQ.

EDC believes that the El Dorado Facility has generally demonstrated its ability to comply with applicable ammonia and nitrate permit levels, but has, from
time to time, had difficulty meeting the more restrictive dissolved minerals permit levels, primarily related to storm-water runoff. We do not believe this
matter regarding meeting the permit requirements as to the dissolved minerals is a continuing issue for the process wastewater as the result of the El Dorado
Facility disposing its wastewater (beginning in September 2013) via a pipeline constructed by the City of El Dorado, Arkansas. We believe that the issue with
the storm-water runoff should be resolved if and when the ADEQ issues a new NPDES discharge water permit, which we have been advised that the ADEQ
is currently processing.

During 2012, EDC paid a penalty of $100,000 to settle an administrative complaint issued by the EPA, and thereafter handled by the United States
Department of Justice (“DOJ”), relating to certain alleged violations through 2010 of EDC’s 2004 NPDES discharge water permit. The DOJ advised that
action would also be taken for alleged violations occurring after 2010. As of the date of this report, no action has been filed by the DOJ against EDC. As a
result, the cost (or range of costs) cannot currently be reasonably estimated regarding this matter. Therefore, no liability has been established at September 30,
2015.

In addition, the El Dorado Facility is currently operating under a consent administrative order (the “CAQ”) that recognizes the presence of nitrate
contamination in the shallow groundwater. The 2006 CAO required EDC to continue semiannual groundwater monitoring, to continue operation of a
groundwater recovery system and to submit a human health and ecological risk assessment to the ADEQ relating to the El Dorado Facility. The risk
assessment was submitted in August 2007. The final remedy for shallow groundwater contamination, should any remediation be required, will be selected
pursuant to a new consent administrative order and based upon the risk assessment. The cost of any additional remediation that may be required will be
determined based on the results of the investigation and risk assessment, of which cost (or range of costs) cannot currently be reasonably estimated.
Therefore, no liability has been established at September 30, 2015, in connection with this matter.

2. Air Matters

One of our subsidiaries within our Chemical Business, PCC has been advised that the ODEQ is conducting an investigation into whether the chemical
production facility located in Pryor, Oklahoma is in compliance with certain rules and regulations of the ODEQ and whether PCC’s reports of certain air
emissions primarily in 2011 were intentionally reported incorrectly to the ODEQ. PCC has cooperated with the ODEQ in connection with this investigation.
As of September 30, 2015, we are not aware of any recommendations made or to be made by the ODEQ with respect to legal action to be taken or
recommended as a result of this ongoing investigation.

3. Other Environmental Matters

During May of 2013, the EPA conducted a risk management inspection of our Cherokee Facility. During October 2014, our Cherokee Facility received a
notice of violation from the EPA as a result of the inspection, which listed eleven alleged violations. Our Cherokee Facility has provided the EPA with written
responses. During May 2015, our Cherokee Facility received a settlement letter from the EPA, which terms have been accepted by the Cherokee Facility, and
we are awaiting the final consent decree from the EPA. Under the proposed settlement agreement, we have agreed to pay a penalty in the form of providing
$100,000 to purchase emergency response equipment for the local first responders plus a civil penalty to the EPA of approximately $26,000. As a result, we
have accrued for the amount of this settlement, which is included in our accrued liabilities for environmental matters discussed above.
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Note 8: Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

In 2002, two subsidiaries within our Chemical Business sold substantially all of their operating assets relating to a Kansas chemical facility (the “Hallowell
Facility”) but retained ownership of the real property. Even though we continued to own the real property, we did not assess our continuing involvement with
our former Hallowell Facility to be significant and therefore accounted for the sale as discontinued operations. Our subsidiary retained the obligation to be
responsible for, and perform the activities under, a previously executed consent order to investigate the surface and subsurface contamination at the real
property and develop a corrective action strategy based on the investigation. In addition, certain of our subsidiaries agreed to indemnify the buyer of such
assets for these environmental matters. Based on the assessment discussed above, we account for transactions associated with the Hallowell Facility as
discontinued operations.

The successor Chevron Environmental Management Company (“Chevron”) of a prior owner of the Hallowell Facility has agreed in writing, within certain
limitations, to pay and has been paying one-half of the costs of the investigation and interim measures relating to this matter as approved by the Kansas
Department of Health and Environment (the “KDHE”), subject to reallocation.

Our subsidiary and Chevron are pursuing with the state of Kansas, including the KDHE, a corrective action strategy relating to the Hallowell Facility. This
strategy currently includes long-term surface and groundwater monitoring to track the natural decline in contamination. During December 2014, the KDHE
approved a corrective action study work plan and will consider and recommend restoration or replacement pursuant to the work plan and/or whether to seek
compensation in its evaluation. Currently, it is unknown what remediation and damages the KDHE would require, if any, but we believe that certain
remediation activities will be required to begin in 2016. The ultimate required remediation, if any, is currently unknown. Our subsidiary and Chevron have
retained an environmental consultant to perform the corrective action study work plan as to the appropriate method to remediate the Hallowell Facility, which
study is not scheduled to be completed until the end of 2015. We have been advised by our consultant that until the study has been completed there are too
many unknowns to have a meaningful and reliable estimate as to the cost of the remediation. We have accrued for our allocable portion of costs primarily for
the additional testing, monitoring and risk assessments that could be reasonably estimated, which is included in our accrued liabilities for environmental
matters discussed above. The estimated amount is not discounted to its present value. As more information becomes available relating to the study during the
remainder of 2015, our estimated accrual will be refined.

B.  Other Pending, Threatened or Settled Litigation

In 2013, an explosion and fire occurred at the West Fertilizer Co. (“West Fertilizer”) located in West, Texas, causing death, bodily injury and substantial
property damage. West Fertilizer is not owned or controlled by us, but West Fertilizer had been a customer of EDC, purchasing AN from EDC from time to
time. LSB and EDC received letters from counsel purporting to represent subrogated insurance carriers, personal injury claimants and persons who suffered
property damages informing LSB and EDC that their clients are conducting investigations into the cause of the explosion and fire to determine, among other
things, whether AN manufactured by EDC and supplied to West Fertilizer was stored at West Fertilizer at the time of the explosion and, if so, whether such
AN may have been one of the contributing factors of the explosion. Initial lawsuits filed named West Fertilizer and another supplier of AN as defendants. In
2014, EDC and LSB were named as defendants, together with other AN manufacturers and brokers that arranged the transport and delivery of AN to West
Fertilizer, in the case styled City of West, Texas v CF Industries, Inc., et al, in the District Court of McLennan County, Texas. The plaintiffs allege, among
other things, that LSB and EDC were negligent in the production and marketing of fertilizer products sold to West Fertilizer, resulting in death, personal
injury and property damage. EDC has retained a firm specializing in cause and origin investigations that has particular experience with fertilizer facilities, to
assist EDC in its own investigation. LSB and EDC have placed its liability insurance carrier on notice, which carrier is handling the defense for LSB and
EDC concerning this matter. Our product liability insurance policies have aggregate limits of general liability totaling $100 million, with a self-insured
retention of $250,000. In August 2015, the trial court dismissed plaintiff’s negligence claims against us and EDC based on a duty to inspect, but allowed the
plaintiffs to proceed on claims for design defect and failure to warn. Subsequently, we and EDC entered into a confidential settlement agreement with three
family groups that had claimed wrongful death and bodily injury. A liability has been established as a result of this settlement agreement. In addition, a
receivable for the insurance recovery was also recognized in conjunction with this agreement and pursuant to the terms of our insurance policy. While the
settlement resolves the claims of what we believe were the highest risk cases in this matter for us, we continue to be party to litigation related to this explosion
by other
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Note 8: Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

plaintiffs, in addition to indemnification or defense obligations we may have to other defendants. We intend to continue to defend these lawsuits vigorously.
However, we are unable to estimate a possible range of loss at this time if there is an adverse outcome in this matter as to EDC. As of September 30, 2015, no
liability has been established in connection with this matter, except for the settlement agreement discussed above, but we have incurred professional fees up to
our self-insured retention amount.

During May of 2015, our subsidiary, EDC, was sued in the matter styled BAE Systems Ordinance Systems, Inc. (“BAE”), et al. vs. El Dorado Chemical
Company, in the United States District Court, Western District of Arkansas, for an alleged breach of a supply agreement to provide BAE certain products. It is
EDC'’s position, among other things, that its inability to deliver to BAE was due to a force majeure event caused by a fire and explosion at EDC’s nitric acid
plant, and that a force majeure clause in the supply agreement therefore excuses EDC’s performance under the supply agreement. BAE’s pre-litigation
demand indicated a claim in excess of $30 million. EDC intends to vigorously defend this matter. The cost (or range of costs), if any, EDC would incur
relating to this matter cannot currently be reasonably estimated. Therefore, no liability has been established at September 30, 2015.

On September 25, 2015, a case styled Dennis Wilson vs. LSB Industries, Inc., et al., was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of
New York. The plaintiff purports to represent a class of our shareholders and asserts that we violated federal securities laws by allegedly making material
misstatements and omissions about delays and cost overruns at our El Dorado Chemical Company manufacturing facility and about our financial well-being
and prospects. The lawsuit, which also names certain current and former officers, seeks an unspecified amount of damages. Given the uncertainty of
litigation, the preliminary stage of the case, and the legal standards that must be met for, among other things, class certification and success on the merits, we
cannot estimate the reasonably possible loss or range of loss that may result from this action.

In September 2015, we and EDA received formal written notice from Global Industrial, Inc. (“Global”) of Global’s intention to assert mechanic liens for
labor, service, or materials furnished under certain subcontract agreements for the improvement of the new ammonia plant at our El Dorado Facility. Global
subcontracted with the general contractor, Leidos Constructors, LLC (“Leidos”), and claims that Global is entitled to payment for certain work in the sum of
approximately $18 million. Leidos, as general contractor to EDA, has reported that it made an estimated $6 million payment to Global on or about

September 11, 2015 thereby reducing the claim to approximately $12 million. Leidos terminated the services of Global with respect to their work performed
at our El Dorado Facility in July 2015. Leidos has not approved certain payments to Global pending the result of on-going audits and investigation undertaken
to quantify the financial impact of Global’s work. EDA intends to monitor the Leidos audit, and conduct EDA’s own investigation, in an effort to determine
whether any additional payment should be released to Global for any work not in dispute. LSB and EDA intend to pursue recovery of any damage or loss
caused by Global’s work performed at our El Dorado Facility. As of September 30, 2015, no liability has been established in connection with this matter.

We are also involved in various other claims and legal actions including claims for damages resulting from water leaks related to our Climate Control
Business products and other product liability occurrences. Most of the product liability claims are covered by our general liability insurance, which includes a
deductible of $250,000 or $500,000 per claim, depending on the policy period. For any claims or legal actions that we have assessed the likelihood of our
liability as probable, we have recognized our estimated liability up to the applicable deductible. At September 30, 2015, our accrued general liability
insurance claims were $560,000 and are included in accrued and other liabilities. It is possible that the actual future development of claims could be different
from our estimates but, after consultation with legal counsel, we believe that changes in our estimates will not have a material effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 9: Derivatives, Hedges, Financial Instruments and Carbon Credits

Periodically, we have three classes of contracts that are accounted for on a fair value basis, which are commodities futures/forward contracts (“commaodities
contracts”), foreign exchange contracts and interest rate contracts as discussed below. All of these contracts are used as economic hedges for risk management
purposes but are not designated as hedging instruments. In addition, as discussed below, we are issued climate reserve tonnes (“carbon credits”), of which a
certain portion of the carbon credits are to be sold and a portion of the proceeds given to Covestro (formerly Bayer MaterialScience). The assets for carbon
credits are accounted for on a fair value basis as discussed below. Also, the contractual obligations to give the applicable portion of the related proceeds to
Covestro are accounted for on a fair value basis, as discussed below, unless we enter into a firm sales
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Note 9: Derivatives, Hedges, Financial Instruments and Carboen Credits (continued)

commitment to sell the carbon credits. The valuations of these assets and liabilities were determined based on quoted market prices, or, in instances where
market quotes are not available, other valuation techniques or models used to estimate fair values. The valuations of contracts classified as Level 1 are based
on quoted prices in active markets for identical contracts. The valuations of contracts classified as Level 2 are based on quoted prices for similar contracts and
valuation inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for these contracts. At September 30, 2015, the valuations of contracts classified as Level 2
related to certain futures/forward natural gas contracts, a foreign exchange contract and an interest rate swap contract.

For the natural gas contracts, these contracts are valued using the prices pursuant to the terms of the contracts and using market information for
futures/forward natural gas prices. At September 30, 2015, the valuation inputs included the contractual weighted-average cost of $2.93 per MMBtu and the
estimated weighted-average market value of $2.65 per MMBtu.

For foreign exchange contracts, these contracts are valued using the foreign currency exchange rates pursuant to the terms of the contract and using market
information for foreign currency exchange rates. The valuation inputs included the total contractual exchange rate of 1.12 and the total estimated market
exchange rate of 1.13 (U.S. Dollar/Euro). For interest rate swap contracts, we utilize valuation software and market data from a third-party provider. These
contracts are valued using a discounted cash flow model that calculates the present value of future cash flows pursuant to the terms of the contracts and using
market information for forward interest-rate yield curves. At September 30, 2015, the valuation inputs included the contractual weighted-average pay rate of
3.23% and the estimated market weighted-average receive rate of 0.38%. No valuation input adjustments were considered necessary relating to
nonperformance risk for the contracts as discussed above.

The valuations of assets and liabilities classified as Level 3 are based on prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both unobservable and
significant to the overall fair value measurement. At September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the valuations ($2.35 and $2.50 per carbon credit,
respectively) of the carbon credits and the contractual obligations associated with these carbon credits are classified as Level 3 and are based on the most
recent sales agreement and reevaluated for market changes, if any, and on the range of ask/bid prices obtained from a broker adjusted for minimal market
volume activity, respectively. The valuations use undiscounted cash flows based on management’s assumption that the carbon credits would be sold, and the
associated contractual obligations would be extinguished in the near term. In addition, no valuation input adjustments were considered necessary relating to
nonperformance risk for the carbon credits and associated contractual obligations.

Commodities Contracts

Raw materials for use in our manufacturing processes include copper used by our Climate Control Business and natural gas and platinum used by our
Chemical Business. As part of our raw material price risk management, we periodically enter into futures/forward contracts for these materials, which
contracts may be required to be accounted for on a mark-to-market basis. At September 30, 2015, we did not have any futures/forward copper contracts. At
December 31, 2014, our futures/forward copper contracts included 1,750,000 pounds of copper, extended through May 2015 at a weighted-average cost of
$2.98 per pound. At September 30, 2015, our futures/forward natural gas contracts (accounted for on a mark-to-market basis) included approximately
3,227,000 MMBtu of natural gas and extend through June 2016 (includes contractual costs indexed to future NYMEX prices) at a weighted-average cost of
$2.93 per MMBtu. At December 31, 2014, our futures/forward natural gas contracts included 8,279,000 MMBtu of natural gas and extended through June
2016 at a weighted-average cost of $3.24 per MMBtu. At September 30, 2015, we did not have any futures/forward platinum contracts. At December 31,
2014, our futures/forward platinum contracts included 3,000 ounces of platinum and extended through April 2015 at a weighted-average cost of $1,224.26 per
ounce. The cash flows relating to these contracts are included in cash flows from continuing operating activities.

Foreign Exchange Contracts

One of our business operations purchases industrial machinery and related components from vendors outside of the United States. As part of our foreign
currency risk management, we periodically enter into foreign exchange contracts, which set the U.S. Dollar/Euro exchange rates. At September 30, 2015, our
foreign exchange contract was for the receipt of approximately 293,000 Euros through February 2017 at the contractual exchange rate of 1.12 (U.S.
Dollar/Euro). At December 31, 2014, our foreign exchange contract was for the receipt of approximately 819,000 Euros through May 2015 at the contractual
exchange rate of 1.27 (U.S. Dollar/Euro). These contracts are free-standing derivatives and are accounted for on a mark-to-market basis. The cash flows
relating to these contracts are included in cash flows from continuing operating activities.
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Interest Rate Contracts

As part of our interest rate risk management, we periodically purchase and/or enter into various interest rate contracts. In February of 2011, we entered into an
interest rate swap at no cost, which sets a fixed three-month LIBOR rate of 3.23% on a declining balance (from $23.8 million to $18.8 million) for the period
beginning in April 2012 through March 2016. This contract is a free-standing derivative and is accounted for on a mark-to-market basis. During the nine
months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, no cash flows occurred relating to the purchase or sale of interest rate contracts. The cash flows associated with
the interest rate swap payments are included in cash flows from continuing operating activities.

Carbon Credits and Associated Contractual Obligation

Periodically, we are issued carbon credits by the Climate Action Reserve in relation to a greenhouse gas reduction project (the “Project”) performed at the
Baytown Facility. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement with Covestro, a certain portion of the carbon credits are to be used to recover the costs of the
project, and any balance thereafter is to be allocated between Covestro and EDN. We have no obligation to reimburse Covestro for their costs associated with
the project, except through the transfer or sale of the carbon credits when such credits are issued to us. The assets for carbon credits are accounted for on a fair
value basis and the contractual obligations associated with these carbon credits are also accounted for on a fair value basis (unless we enter into a sales
commitment to sell the carbon credits). At September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had approximately 84,000 and 1,112,000 carbon credits,
respectively, all of which were subject to contractual obligations. The cash flows associated with the carbon credits and the associated contractual obligations
are included in cash flows from continuing investing activities.
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The following details our assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

Fair Value Measurements at
September 30, 2015 Using
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Total Fair Markets for Other Significant Total Fair
Value at Identical Observable Unobservable Value at
September 30, Assets Inputs Inputs December 31,
Description 2015 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2014
(In Thousands)
Assets - Supplies, prepaid items and other:
Carbon credits $ 187 $ — $ — $ 187 $ 2,779
Foreign exchange contracts 3 — 3 — —
Total $ 190 $ — $ 3 $ 187 $ 2,779
Liabilities - Current and noncurrent accrued and other liabilities:
Commodities contracts $ 915 $ — $ 915 $ — $ 2,440
Contractual obligations - carbon credits 187 — — 187 2,779
Interest rate contracts 278 — 278 — 671
Foreign exchange contracts — — — — 44
Total $ 1,380 $ — $ 1,193 $ 187 $ 5,934
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None of our assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis transferred between Level 1 and Level 2 classifications for the periods presented
below. In addition, the following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(In Thousands)
Beginning balance $ 4049 $1,673 $(4,049) $(1,673) $2,779 $1,284 $(2,779) $(1,284)
Transfers into Level 3 — — — — — — — —
Transfers out of Level 3 — — — — — — — —
Total net realized and unrealized gains (losses) included in
earnings — — 904 — 1,334 1,925 (430) (1,634)
Purchases — — — — — — — —
Issuances — — — — — — — —
Sales (3,862) — — — (3,926) (1,536) — —
Settlements — — 2,958 — — — 3,022 1,245
Ending balance $ 187 $1673 $ (187) $(1673) $ 187 $1673 $ (187) $(1,673)
Total net gains (losses) for the period included in earnings
attributed to the change in unrealized gains or losses on
assets and liabilities still held at the reporting date $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 177 $1,004 $ (177) $(1,004)
Net gains (losses) included in earnings and the income statement classifications are as follows:
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In Thousands)
Total net gains (losses) included in earnings:
Cost of sales - Undesignated commodities contracts $(1,526) $(214) $(3,574) $ 1,897
Cost of sales - Undesignated foreign exchange contracts 2 — (62) —
Other income - Carbon credits 904 — 2,645 1,925
Other expense - Contractual obligations relating to carbon credits — — (1,741) (1,634)
Interest expense - Undesignated interest rate contracts (10) 14 (55) (43)
$ (630) $(200) $(2,787) $ 2,145

At September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we did not have any financial instruments with fair values significantly different from their carrying
amounts, except for the Senior Secured Notes. At September 30, 2015, the carrying value of the Senior Secured Notes exceeded the estimated fair value by
approximately $15 million based on a quoted price of 96.5. At December 31, 2014, the estimated fair value of the Senior Secured Notes exceeded the carrying
value by approximately $17 million based on a quoted price of 104.0. These valuations are classified as Level 2. The valuations of our other long-term debt
agreements are classified as Level 3 and are based on valuation techniques that require inputs that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair
value measurement. The fair value measurements of our other long-term debt agreements are valued using a discounted cash flow model that calculates the

present value of future cash flows pursuant to the terms of the debt agreements
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Note 9: Derivatives, Hedges, Financial Instruments and Carben Credits (continued)

and applies estimated current market interest rates. The estimated current market interest rates are based primarily on interest rates currently being offered on
borrowings of similar amounts and terms. In addition, no valuation input adjustments were considered necessary relating to nonperformance risk for our debt
agreements. The fair value of our financial instruments is not indicative of the overall fair value of our assets and liabilities since financial instruments do not
include all assets, including intangibles, and all liabilities.

See discussions concerning certain assets and liabilities initially accounted for on a fair value basis under Note 6 - Asset Retirement Obligations.

Note 10: Income Taxes

Provision (benefit) for income taxes are as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In Thousands)
Current:
Federal $ (5,582) $ 660 $ (5,572) $ (529)
State 197 31 857 1,273
Total Current (5,385) 691 (4,715) 744
Deferred:
Federal (14,592) (2,568) (11,469) 10,825
State (2,005) (538) (1,658) 717
Total Deferred (16,597) (3,106) (13,127) 11,542
Provision (benefit) for income taxes $(21,982) $(2,415) $(17,842) $12,286

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, the current provision (benefit) for federal income taxes shown above includes regular
federal income tax provision after the consideration of permanent and temporary differences between income for GAAP and tax purposes. For the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, the current provisions for state income taxes shown above includes regular state income tax and provisions
for uncertain state income tax positions.

Our annual estimated effective rate for 2015 includes the impact of permanent tax differences, such as energy tax credits and other permanent items.

The tax benefit for the nine months ended September 30, 2015 was $17.8 million (40% of pre-tax loss) and the tax provision for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014 was $12.3 million (39% of pre-tax income).

LSB and certain of its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the 2012-2014
years remain open for all purposes of examination by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service and other major tax jurisdictions.
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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Unaudited)
Note 11: Segment Information
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
15 2014 15 2014
(In Thousands)

Net sales:

Chemical $ 80,623 $ 94,767 $320,205 $345,744

Climate Control 75,050 73,485 207,090 196,585

Other 2,012 2,794 6,907 8,904

$157,685 $171,046 $534,202 $551,233

Gross profit (loss): (1)

Chemical (2) $ (10,456) $ (521) $ 25,001 $ 57,161

Climate Control 22,978 23,862 63,021 61,628

Other 757 1,045 2,498 3,188

$ 13,279 $ 24,386 $ 90,520 $121,977

Operating income (loss): (1)

Chemical (2) (3) $ (55,046) $ (5,587) $ (31,546) $ 46,815

Climate Control 7,163 8,452 15,479 17,396

Other 169 397 745 1,298

General corporate expenses (4) (7,173) (4,459) (22,782) (17,081)

(54,887) (1,197) (38,104) 48,428

Interest expense, net (5) 877 5,079 6,505 17,458
Non-operating income, net:

Chemical (16) (73) (77) (213)

Climate Control — — 4) —

Corporate and other business operations ) (16) (26) (29)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (21,982) (2,415) (17,842) 12,286
Equity in earnings of affiliate - Climate Control — — — (79)
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (33,759) $ (3,772) $ (26,660) $ 19,005

M

@

3

Gross profit (loss) by business segment represents net sales less cost of sales. Gross profit classified as “Other” relates to the sales of industrial
machinery and related components. Operating income (loss) by business segment represents gross profit (loss) by business segment less selling, general
and administrative expense (“SG&A™) incurred by each business segment plus other income and other expense earned/incurred by each business
segment before general corporate expenses.

During the third quarter of 2015, a Turnaround was performed at our Pryor Facility. Following the completion of a Turnaround at our Pryor Facility we
experienced unplanned downtime while restarting the plant that negatively impacted production, sales and operating results. During the first quarter of
2014, we recognized business interruption and property insurance recoveries totaling $28.0 million, of which approximately $22.9 million was
recognized as a reduction to cost of sales. During the third quarter of 2014, a Turnaround was performed at our Cherokee Facility, which negatively
impacted production, sales and operating results.

During the third quarter of 2015, our Chemical Business recognized an impairment charge of $39.7 million relating to our working interest in natural
gas properties as discussed in Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Unaudited)
Note 11: Segment Information (continued)
(4) General corporate expenses consist of the following:
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In Thousands)
Selling, general and administrative:
Personnel costs $(4,428) $(2,134) $(11,118) $ (6,478)
Fees and expenses relating to shareholders (A) (113) (230) (4,447) (4,692)
Professional fees (1,556) (1,185) (4,387) (3,333)
All other (1,058) (915) (2,829) (2,633)
Total selling, general and administrative (7,155) (4,464) (22,781) (17,136)
Other income 4 19 73 69
Other expense (22) (14) (74) (14)
Total general corporate expenses $(7,173) $(4,459) $(22,782) $(17,081)

(A) These fees and expenses include costs associated with evaluating and analyzing proposals received from certain activist shareholders and dealing,
negotiating and settling with those shareholders in order to avoid proxy contests.

(5) During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, interest expense is net of capitalized interest of $8.3 million and $20.9 million,
respectively. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014, interest expense is net of capitalized interest of $3.9 million and $9.2
million, respectively.

Information about our total assets by business segment is as follows:

September 30, December 31,
2015 2014
(In Thousands)

Chemical $ 968,127 $ 929,745
Climate Control 121,904 133,183
Other 6,437 5,960
Corporate assets 60,526 68,117
Total assets $1,156,994 $1,137,005

Note 12: Related Party Transactions
Golsen Group

During the first quarter of 2015 and 2014, we paid dividends totaling $300,000, respectively, on our Series B Preferred and our Series D Preferred. The Series
B Preferred and Series D Preferred are non-redeemable preferred stocks issued in 1986 and 2001, respectively, of which all outstanding shares are owned by
the Golsen Group.
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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Unaudited)

Note 13: Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The following provides additional information relating to cash flow activities:

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2015 2014
(In Thousands)
Cash payments (refunds) for income taxes, net $ (3,648) $ (4,864)
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and long-term debt associated with additions of
property, plant and equipment $59,566 $23,017
Long-term debt associated with additions of capitalized internal-use software and
software development $ 3,082 $ 4,256

Note 14: Subsequent Events

Commitment For Financing - On November 6, 2015, we obtained from an investor (including one or more of its affiliates) a commitment for financing
primarily for the purpose of completing our planned capital additions at the El Dorado Facility. The commitment is for $260 million of capital in the form of
debt, preferred stock, and common stock warrants, as follows:

. $50 million in Senior Secured Notes issued at par with a 12% annual interest rate, subject to a limited reset based on certain circumstances but in
no event not to exceed a 13.5% annual interest rate. The notes will mature in August 2019, and we have the right to redeem the notes beginning
August 2016 at 106%, August 2017 at 103%, and after August 2018 at par. These notes will be pari passu obligations with and share in the note
collateral of our existing $425 million of Senior Secured Notes issued in 2013, and they will have substantially similar covenants and events of
default.

. $210 million in cumulative redeemable nonconvertible perpetual non-voting preferred stock (“Preferred Stock”) with a 14% annual dividend rate
and an economic participation right equal to 2% of our outstanding common stock before the transaction. The Preferred Stock will rank senior in
right of dividends and liquidation payments to all our other existing capital stock, including the preferred stock held by the Golsen family. We
will have the right to pay dividends on the Preferred Stock in cash or in-kind. We may redeem the Preferred Stock at any time without premium
or penalty at the liquidation preference plus accrued and unpaid dividends plus the value of the participating right. The Preferred Stock is
redeemable at the option of the holder beginning one day after the maturity date of our existing Senior Secured Notes. We may settle the
redemption of the Preferred Stock in cash or common stock, with the consent of the holder, but subject to our obtaining prior stockholder
approval for stock settlement under NYSE requirements.

. In connection with this financing, we have also committed to issue the purchaser of the Preferred Stock warrants to purchase common
stock equal to 17.99% of our outstanding common stock before the transaction at an exercise price of $0.01 per share. The warrant has a
ten-year term. The purchaser of the Preferred Stock will also obtain voting rights with our common stock equal to 19.99% of our
outstanding common stock before the transaction and will have customary registration rights and pro rata preemptive rights on equity
issuance, subject to customary exceptions.

. The Company will pay a commitment fee of 2% ($5.2 million) on the full amount of the committed financing and a funding fee of 2% (totaling
$5.2 million) upon issuance of each of the Senior Secured Notes and the Preferred Stock.

The commitment is subject to the negotiation and execution of definitive documentation and other customary conditions. Although we have entered into
exclusivity with the purchaser, we will pay a fee of 3% of the Preferred Stock commitment if the Preferred Stock and warrants are not issued in certain
circumstances.

Amendment to Agreement with Leidos — During October 2015, our subsidiaries, EDA and EDC, entered into an amendment agreement (the “Amendment
Agreement”) with Leidos to amend certain contracts (the “Leidos Contracts”). The Amendment Agreement allows for short term payment terms for net 60
days not to exceed $50 million outstanding at any time and net 30 day terms for any amount of outstanding invoices submitted in excess of $50 million,
beginning after our payment to Leidos on October 2, 2015. The Amendment Agreement further provides that within 72 hours after closing financing for the
remainder of all the projects in the Leidos Contracts, but no later than December 10, 2015, EDA and EDCC will pay to Leidos all outstanding invoices that
are more than 30 days old and all remaining outstanding invoices will revert to net 30 day terms. The Amendment Agreement also reduced the amount of
direct cost mark-up up to a certain threshold (reduced from 4.5% to 2.25% for the direct costs up to $70 million in the aggregate across all the Leidos
Contracts, after which any additional direct costs will have a mark-up of 4.5%) and increased the overhead charges payable to Leidos (increased by a total of
$6.2 million), in addition to other changes in the Leidos Contracts.

Ammonia Supply Agreement - On November 2, 2015, EDC and Koch Fertilizer, LLC (“Koch Fertilizer”) entered into an ammonia purchase and sale
agreement under which Koch Fertilizer agrees to purchase, with minimum purchase requirements, the ammonia that (a) will be produced at the El Dorado
Facility and (b) that is in excess of El Dorado’s needs. The initial term of the agreement is for three years, which term begins once the new ammonia plant is
completed, and automatically continues for one or more additional one-year terms unless terminated by either party by delivering a notice of termination at
least nine months prior to the end of term in effect. However, if the new ammonia plant is not completed by July 31, 2016, either party may provide notice of
termination on or before October 31, 2016.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in conjunction with a review of the
other Items included in this Form 10-Q including our September 30, 2015 condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report.
Certain statements contained in this MD&A may be deemed to be forward-looking statements. Also see “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements.”

Overview
General
LSB is a manufacturing company operating through our subsidiaries. LSB and its wholly-owned subsidiaries own the following core businesses:

. Chemical Business manufactures and sells nitrogen-based chemical products for the agricultural, industrial, and mining markets it
produces from four facilities located in El Dorado, Arkansas; Cherokee, Alabama; Pryor, Oklahoma; and Baytown, Texas.

. Climate Control Business manufactures and sells a broad range of HVAC products that include water source and geothermal heat pumps,
hydronic fan coils, large custom air handlers, modular geothermal and other chillers, and other related products and services. These
products are primarily used in commercial/institutional and residential new buildings construction, renovation of existing buildings and
replacement of existing systems. Our Climate Control Business manufactures and distributes its products from seven facilities located in
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.

Key Capital Expenditure and Financing Developments

Over the course of September and October, management in conjunction with the owner’s representative, the engineering, procurement and construction
contractor and other consultants determined that the total cost to complete the El Dorado Expansion projects will exceed what we previously projected, due,
in part, to mechanical and piping labor cost increases compared to earlier estimates. We have now determined that the total cost to complete the El Dorado
Expansion projects is estimated to be in the range of $831 million to $855 million ($564 million spent as of September 30, 2015 and $197 million to $216
million to be spent in the fourth quarter of 2015 and between $70 million to $75 million to be spent in 2016).

We expect that the new ammonia plant will be mechanically complete by early February 2016 and should begin production early in the second quarter of
2016. As for the new nitric acid plant and concentrator, the concentrator went into production in June 2015 and the nitric acid plant is expected to be in
production beginning the week of November 9th.

Although we had begun seeking additional debt financing to address what were then our known costs of the El Dorado Expansion projects in August and
September, the reluctance of existing bondholders to permit additional senior indebtedness unless we obtained additional equity, together with our becoming
aware that we may have potential additional costs for the El Dorado Expansion projects, caused us to reevaluate our financing plans and liquidity needs while
we also worked to define the new cost estimates. As a result of that analysis, we concluded that our liquidity needs to complete the projects would exceed
available debt financing, particularly in light of our existing debt covenants that limited the incurrence of additional indebtedness; that publicly offered
financing would not be available before we had defined the cost estimates and released our quarterly results and would probably be unavailable even after
those events; and, therefore, either that other financing solutions were required quickly in order for us to continue the projects or that the projects would need
to be delayed or stopped in November or December to preserve our liquidity for other operations, which without the El Dorado costs are generally self-
sustaining. We also began taking additional steps to address our liquidity concerns, including obtaining extended payment terms from Leidos, the manager of
the design and construction of our El Dorado Expansion project and obtaining financing for discrete pieces of equipment. See Note 14 to the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements and “—Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

We considered and explored with our financial advisor and potential investors or asset buyers various choices to address this situation, including short-term
and long-term debt financings within our permitted indebtedness limits, the costs and likelihood of obtaining consents to raise our permitted indebtedness
limits, the sale of one or more of our significant assets or divisions, and various forms of equity issuances. We recognized that, without additional financing,
some counterparties to contracts might begin changing payment terms and requiring cash payments in advance, which would further impair our liquidity and
affect our business. We evaluated our choices based on timing of financing, certainty of completion, and short- and long-term costs, recognizing that any
financing in a situation such as this was likely to be costly. Ultimately, based on the choices available after analyzing and pursuing various options, we
concluded that termination or delay of the El Dorado Expansion projects would significantly impair the long-term value of the company compared to the costs
and benefits of a private debt and equity financing solution and that a sale of significant assets was not likely to be completed quickly enough at an
appropriate price.

On November 6, 2015, we obtained from Security Benefit Corporation and one or more of its affiliates a commitment for financing primarily for the purpose
of completing our El Dorado Expansion projects. The commitment is for $260 million of capital in the form of debt, preferred stock, and common stock
warrants, as follows:

. $50 million in Senior Secured Notes issued at par with a 12% annual interest rate, subject to a limited reset based on certain circumstances but in
no event not to exceed a 13.5% annual interest rate. The notes will mature in August 2019, and we have the right to redeem the notes beginning
August 2016 at 106%, August 2017 at 103%, and after August 2018 at par. These notes will be pari passu obligations with and share in the note
collateral of our existing $425 million of Senior Secured Notes issued in 2013, and they will have substantially similar covenants and events of
default.

. $210 million in cumulative redeemable nonconvertible perpetual non-voting preferred stock (“Preferred Stock™) with a 14% annual dividend rate
and an economic participation right equal to 2% of our outstanding common stock before the transaction. The Preferred Stock will rank senior in
right of dividends and liquidation payments to all our other existing capital stock, including the preferred stock held by the Golsen family. We
will have the right to pay dividends on the Preferred Stock in cash or in-kind. We may redeem the Preferred Stock at any time without premium
or penalty at the liquidation preference plus accrued and unpaid dividends plus the value of the participating right. The Preferred Stock is
redeemable at the option of the holder beginning one day after the maturity date of our existing Senior Secured Notes. We may settle the
redemption of the Preferred Stock in cash or common stock, with the consent of the holder, but subject to our obtaining prior stockholder
approval for stock settlement under NYSE requirements.



In connection with this financing, we have also committed to issue the purchaser of the Preferred Stock warrants to purchase
common stock equal to 17.99% of our outstanding common stock before the transaction at an exercise price of $0.01 per share. The
warrant has a ten-year term. The purchaser of the Preferred Stock will also obtain voting rights with our common stock equal to
19.99% of our outstanding common stock before the transaction and will have customary registration rights and pro rata
preemptive rights on equity issuance, subject to customary exceptions.

The purchase agreement for the Preferred Stock will also contain certain reporting and operating covenants that will continue until
the purchaser ceases to hold at least 10% of the Preferred Stock.

The purchaser of the Preferred Stock will also have the right to appoint three nominees to our Board as replacements for three
existing independent directors effective at the closing of the Preferred Stock. The purchaser of the Preferred Stock has also
obtained a commitment from Jack E. Golsen, Barry H. Golsen, and Steven J. Golsen that they will maintain ownership of at least
75% of the stock they currently hold in us, subject to certain exceptions, and a commitment that the Golsens will have the right to
nominate two directors to our Board. The board rights will be reduced or eliminated based on the number of warrants or common
stock issued pursuant to the warrants that the purchaser retains.

. The Company will pay a commitment fee of 2% ($5.2 million) on the full amount of the committed financing and a funding fee of 2% (totaling
$5.2 million) upon issuance of each of the Senior Secured Notes and the Preferred Stock.

The commitment is subject to the negotiation and execution of definitive documentation and other customary conditions. We have been informed that
approvals under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act will not be required for the transactions. As a result, we expect to issue the Senior Secured Notes on or soon after
November 9, 2015, and to complete the issuance of the Preferred Stock, warrants and related agreements in November or early December. Although we have
entered into exclusivity with the purchaser, we will pay a fee of 3% of the Preferred Stock commitment if the Preferred Stock and warrants are not issued in

certain circumstances.

We believe that the funding provided in the commitment, when completed, together with our other sources of liquidity, will be sufficient for our anticipated
liquidity needs through completion of the El Dorado Expansion project.

Recent Financial Development Highlights — Third Quarter of 2015

Our recent financial developments during the third quarter of 2015 included the following highlights:

. Our consolidated operating loss was $54.9 million compared to a consolidated operating loss of $1.2 million for the same period in 2014. The
increase in operating losses of $53.7 million primarily related to the operating loss of $55.0 million in our Chemical Business and include:

a $39.7 million non-cash impairment charge to reduce the carrying value of our working interest in natural gas properties in the
Marcellus Shale region primarily as the result of the decline in forward prices for natural gas, large natural gas price differentials in
the Marcellus Shale region and changes in the drilling plans of these natural gas properties (see discussion below under “Critical
Accounting Policies and Estimates” in this MD&A);

a $15.6 million negative impact on operating results due to the planned and unplanned downtime experienced at the Pryor Facility
resulting from a total of 70 days of downtime;

a $8.4 million increase in operating losses at the El Dorado Facility including the impact from the expiration of the Orica
Agreement and lower sales volume of agricultural grade AN (“HDAN”) primarily as the result of increased imports of nitrogen
products and unfavorable weather conditions, partially offset by;

a $11.2 million improvement in operating results at the Cherokee Facility due to higher on-stream rates since this facility
performed a bi-annual Turnaround in the third quarter of 2014 and did not perform a Turnaround during 2015.

In November 2015, EDC and Koch Fertilizer entered into an ammonia purchase and sale agreement under which Koch Fertilizer agrees to purchase, with
minimum purchase requirements, the ammonia that (a) will be produced at the El Dorado Facility and (b) that is in excess of El Dorado’s needs as discussed
in Note 14 to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Key Industry Factors
Chemical Business

Supply and Demand
Agricultural

The price at which our agricultural products are ultimately sold depends on numerous factors, including the supply and demand for nitrogen fertilizers, which,
in turn, depends upon, among other factors, world grain demand and production levels, the cost and availability of transportation, storage, weather conditions,
competitive pricing and the availability of imports. An expansion or upgrade of competitors’ facilities, international political and economic developments and
other factors are likely to continue to play an important role in nitrogen fertilizer industry economics. These factors can impact, among other things, the level
of inventories in the market, resulting in price volatility and product margins.

Corn prices affect the number of acres of corn planted in a given year, and the number of acres planted will drive nitrogen fertilizer consumption, likely
driving ammonia, UAN and urea prices. Weather also will have an impact on fertilizer consumption. As reported in the publication Green Markets,
production for the 2015/16 corn season is estimated at 13.5 billion bushels, or 5% below last year’s record level, and the wet weather conditions experienced
in the early spring delayed corn planting and, consequently, fertilizer application. The late start put downward pressure on nitrogen prices as dealers liquidated
inventories by the end of the spring application season. Although unfavorable weather conditions were experienced during the second and third quarters, the
initial fall commitments on nitrogen products were fairly strong; however, buyers have turned cautious coming into the fourth quarter as imports, especially
urea, have put downward pressure on the nitrogen markets. Although current selling prices of nitrogen products have come under pressure and are lower than
they were a year ago, margins still continue to be favorable with much lower natural gas prices than this time last year offsetting the lower prices, with the
exception of AN produced at the El Dorado Facility from purchased ammonia.

Industrial

Our industrial product sales volumes are dependent upon general economic conditions primarily in the housing, automotive, and paper industries. According
to the American Chemistry Council, the U.S. economic indicators continue to be mostly positive. Our sales prices generally vary with the market price of our
feedstock (ammonia, natural gas or sulfur, as applicable) in our pricing arrangements with customers.

Mining

Our mining products are industrial grade AN (“LDAN”) and AN solutions. The primary uses are as AN fuel oil and specialty emulsions primarily in surface
mining of coal and for usage in quarries and the construction industry. As reported by the U.S. Energy Information Administration, annual coal production for
2014 was up 1% from 2013. EIA has forecasted a decline of 9% in overall coal production in the U.S. based on actual production through September 2015.
EIA is also forecasting an additional 3% decrease in U.S. coal production in 2016. The Appalachia region is expected to drive the decline in coal production
with expected declines of approximately 12% in 2015. For 2015, the Powder River Basin and Illinois Basin are estimated to decline approximately 8% and
7%, respectively. We believe that coal production in the U.S. will face significant challenges assuming that natural gas prices remain at current levels and
given that export demand could be lower due to the current strength of U.S. currency. While we believe our plants are well-located to support the regions that
are more stable in the upcoming years, our current mining sales volumes are being impacted by overall lower customer demand for LDAN.

Farmer Economics

The demand for fertilizer is affected by the aggregate crop planting decisions and fertilizer application rate decisions of individual farmers. Individual farmers
make planting decisions based largely on prospective profitability of a harvest, while the specific varieties and amounts of fertilizer they apply depend on
factors such as farmers’ financial resources, soil conditions, weather patterns and the types of crops planted.

Natural Gas Prices

Natural gas is the primary feedstock for the production of nitrogen fertilizers at our Cherokee and Pryor Facilities. Over the last five years, U.S. natural gas
reserves have increased significantly due to, among other factors, advances in extracting shale gas, which have reduced and stabilized natural gas prices,
providing North America plants manufacturing ammonia from natural gas with a cost advantage over certain imports. As a result, we believe that our
competitive position (related to our Pryor and Cherokee Facilities) and that of other North American nitrogen fertilizer producers have been positively
impacted.

We historically have purchased natural gas in the spot market or through the use of forward purchase contracts, or a combination of both. We historically have
used forward purchase contracts to lock in pricing for a portion of our natural gas
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requirements. These forward purchase contracts are generally either fixed-price or index-price, short-term in nature and for a fixed supply quantity. We are
able to purchase natural gas at competitive prices due to our connections to large distribution systems and their proximity to interstate pipeline systems. Over
the past several years, natural gas prices have experienced significant fluctuations, which have had an impact on our cost of producing nitrogen fertilizer. The
following table shows the third quarter volume of natural gas we purchased and the average cost per MMBtu:

2015 2014
Natural gas volumes (MMBtu in millions) 2.1 2.4
Natural gas average cost per MMBtu $3.19 $4.13

Ammonia Prices

Ammonia is the primary feedstock for the production of HDAN and LDAN at our El Dorado Facility. Ammonia pricing is based on a published Tampa,
Florida market index pursuant to an ammonia purchase agreement with Koch Nitrogen International Sarl (“Koch”), under which Koch agrees to supply
certain of the El Dorado Facility’s ammonia requirements. Since this agreement expires at the end of 2015, we are in discussions with Koch to extend this
agreement. The Tampa index is commonly used in annual contracts for both the mining and industrial sectors, and is based on the most recent major industry
transactions in the Tampa market. Pricing considerations for ammonia incorporate international supply-demand, ocean freight and production factors.
Additionally, the El Dorado Facility’s cost to produce HDAN from purchased ammonia can at times exceed our selling price (a cost disadvantage as
compared to producing ammonia from natural gas) as discussed below. Subject to availability, the El Dorado Facility has the ability to source a portion of its
ammonia requirements from our Pryor Facility, which cost is significantly lower than current market prices. Once our new ammonia production plant at the El
Dorado Facility commences production, which we expect to occur in the second quarter of 2016, we believe this cost disadvantage will be eliminated. Over
the past several years, ammonia prices have experienced large fluctuations. The table below shows the El Dorado Facility’s third quarter volume of ammonia
purchased and the average cost per short ton:

2015 2014
Ammonia volumes (tons in thousands) 20 23
Ammonia average cost per short ton $445 $513

Based upon full plant production, the El Dorado Facility would expect to purchase 200,000 to 220,000 tons per year of ammonia feedstock. In the third
quarter of 2015, the purchased ammonia was less than the amount required for full production due to lower production of:

. HDAN tons due to dry weather conditions and cautious buyers resulting from an increase in imports which have put downward pressure on
nitrogen products selling prices and;

. LDAN production caused by low natural gas prices affecting the overall demand for coal translating to lower U.S. coal production combined with
EDC currently being a high cost producer and customers purchasing LDAN from competitors.

It is expected that this overall trend will continue for the balance of 2015 into the second quarter of 2016 until we begin operations of our new ammonia
production plant at the El Dorado Facility and will negatively impact our operating results until that point. We have executed contracts with customers for
them to purchase approximately 210,000 tons per year of LDAN and we believe that these volumes will begin on January 1, 2016.

As mentioned above, our El Dorado Facility produces HDAN, LDAN and nitric acid from purchased ammonia, which is currently at a cost disadvantage
compared to products produced from natural gas. This cost disadvantage combined with the impact of the loss of the Orica Agreement contributed to an

operating loss for the facility during the quarter of approximately $15.0 million compared to an operating loss of approximately $6.6 million in the third

quarter of 2014.
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Transportation Costs

Costs for transporting nitrogen-based products can be significant relative to their selling price. For example, ammonia is a hazardous gas at ambient
temperatures and must be transported in specialized equipment, which is more expensive than other forms of nitrogen fertilizers. In recent years, a significant
amount of the ammonia consumed annually in the U.S was imported. Therefore, nitrogen fertilizer prices in the U.S. are influenced by the cost to transport
product from exporting countries, giving domestic producers that transport shorter distances an advantage.

Climate Control Business
Construction Markets

Our Climate Control Business serves the new and renovation commercial/institutional and residential construction sectors, and we believe the majority of our
business is associated with the construction of new facilities. Information available from the CMFS forecast indicates that construction activity in the
commercial/institutional markets we serve (including multi-family residential structures) is expected to increase 6% in the aggregate during 2015 and is near
2007 pre-recession levels. Additionally, single-family residential construction is expected to grow 11% during 2015 but still remains well below pre-recession
levels. In particular, the hospitality, multi-family, education, and office vertical end markets of the commercial/institutional sector are expected to grow faster
than other vertical end markets we serve.

Based on the above projection as well as the introduction of new products specifically targeted at the hospitality, education and healthcare vertical markets,
we expect the commercial/institutional portion of the Climate Control Business to experience sales growth in the medium-term and long-term. We expect that
our residential products, which are all GHPs, will experience minimal sales growth due to the higher relative total system purchase cost of our higher
efficiency GHP product offerings as compared to traditional HVAC systems creating a longer payback period in most regions due to low natural gas prices
compared to previous years when there were higher natural gas prices. We continue to focus our sales and marketing efforts on increasing our share of the
existing market for our products, as well as expanding the markets for and application of our products, with a focus on utilizing high efficiency/“green”
technology.

Key Operational Factors
Chemical Business
Facility Reliability

Consistent, reliable and safe operations at our chemical plants are critical to our financial performance and results of operations. Unplanned downtime of the
plants typically results in lost contribution margins, increased maintenance expense and decreased inventory for sale. We attempt to mitigate the financial
impact of planned downtime, including Turnarounds maintenance, through a planning process that takes into account the market, the availability of resources
to perform the needed maintenance, feedstock logistics and other factors. Our Cherokee and Pryor Facilities have historically undergone a facility Turnaround
every year. In the third quarter of 2014, our Cherokee Facility underwent an extended Turnaround, replacing certain end-of-life equipment and performing
additional maintenance required to move to a two-year Turnaround cycle. Going forward, we anticipate that Turnarounds at our Cherokee Facility typically
will be performed every two years and are expected to last 25 to 30 days. There was no Turnaround performed at our Cherokee Facility in 2015 with the next
bi-annual Turnaround Scheduled in mid-2016. Turnarounds at our Pryor Facility currently are performed every year and typically last between 20 to 25 days.
In the third quarter of 2015, the Pryor Facility completed a Turnaround that lasted 25 days. However, subsequent to the completion of this Turnaround, this
facility experienced unplanned downtime as discussed below under “Items Affecting Comparability of Results of the Third Quarter”. At our El Dorado
Facility, since we are able to perform Turnaround projects on individual plants without shutting down the entire facility, we believe that the impact of lost
production to be less significant. Upon completion of the new ammonia plant at our El Dorado Facility, that facility is expected to begin with annual
Turnarounds that will typically last between 20 to 25 days. We currently do not plan to perform any Turnarounds during the remainder of 2015.
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Prepay Contracts

We use forward sales of our fertilizer products to optimize our asset utilization, planning process and production scheduling. These sales are made by offering
customers the opportunity to purchase product on a forward basis at prices and delivery dates that we propose. We use this program to varying degrees during
the year depending on market conditions and our view as to whether price environments will be increasing or decreasing. Fixing the selling prices of our
products months in advance of their ultimate delivery to customers typically causes our reported selling prices and margins to differ from spot market prices
and margins available at the time of shipment.

Climate Control Business
Product Orders, Sales and Ending Backlog

Our Climate Control Business’ third quarter 2015 total new product bookings were $65.1 million, a decrease of 12% from the third quarter of 2014 and a 7%
decline from the second quarter of 2015. Our commercial and residential bookings declined 10% and 23%, respectively from the same quarter in 2014. Our
2015 backlog is lower than 2014 due to a reduction in new product order levels.

The following table shows information relating to our product order intake level, net sales and backlog of confirmed customer product orders of our Climate
Control Business:

New Orders (1) Net Sales Ending Backlog (1)
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(In Millions)

First Quarter $66.5 $ 632 $652 $ 603 $686 $ 44.7
Second Quarter $70.2 $ 831 $668 $628 $751 $68.1
Third Quarter $651 $ 741 $751 $ 735 $71.2 $ 735
Fourth Quarter $ 58.0 $ 68.8 $ 64.9
Fiscal Year $278.4 $265.4

(1)  Our product order level consists of confirmed purchase orders from customers that have been accepted and received credit approval. Our backlog
consists of confirmed customer orders for product to be shipped at a future date. Historically, we have not experienced significant cancellations relating
to our backlog of confirmed customer product orders, and we typically expect to ship substantially all of these orders within the next twelve months. It
is possible that some of our customers could cancel a portion of our backlog or extend the shipment terms. Product orders and backlog, as reported,
generally do not include amounts relating to shipping and handling charges, service orders or service contract orders. In addition, product orders and
backlog, as reported, exclude contracts related to our construction business due to the relative size of individual projects and, in some cases, extended
timeframe for completion beyond a twelve-month period.

For October 2015, our new orders received were approximately $23.8 million and our backlog was approximately $71.8 million at October 31, 2015.

Operational Excellence Activities

In 2013 we launched Operational Excellence (“Opex™) initiatives at each of the companies within our Climate Control Business focusing on creating a safe
work environment, industry leading quality, excellent customer service and operating cost reductions. These initiatives have continued throughout 2014 and
2015 with savings used to fuel sales growth at our custom air handler business and realignment of our water source and geothermal heat pump and hydronic
fan coil operations. We have increased our investment through the addition of a group director of Opex and staffing of Opex professionals at three operations
to accelerate improvements in the businesses. The Climate Control Business continues to build the foundation for the continuous improvement culture desired
in our organization. Opex initiatives will drive safety, quality, delivery, and cost reductions with integration into our 2016 strategic planning activities by
setting targeted goals and driving organizational development and management accountability. Savings are expected to come from increased manufacturing
excellence, effective launch of new products, and synergies gained through changes in organizational structure which will leverage support across all
businesses.
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Consolidated Results of the Third Quarter of 2015

Our consolidated net sales for the third quarter of 2015 were $157.7 million compared to $171.0 million for the same period in 2014. The sales decrease of
$13.3 million included a decrease of $14.1 million in our Chemical Business partially offset by an increase of $1.6 million in our Climate Control Business.
Our consolidated operating loss was $54.9 million compared to a consolidated operating loss of $1.2 million for the same period in 2014. The increase in our
operating loss of $53.7 million included an increase in our Chemical Business operating loss of $49.5 million and a decrease $1.3 million in operating income
in our Climate Control Business. In addition, unallocated corporate expenses increased $2.7 million. The items impacting our operating results are discussed
in more detail below and under “Results of Operations.”

Items Affecting Comparability of Results of the Third Quarter
Chemical Business
Impairment of Natural Gas Properties

As part of our process in preparing the condensed consolidated financial statements included this report, in October 2015, a subsidiary within our Chemical
Business received an engineering and economic evaluation (“Evaluation”) from our independent petroleum engineer relating to its working interest in natural
gas properties in the Marcellus Shale region. The results of this Evaluation indicated that the carrying amount of these natural gas properties may not be
recoverable. Therefore a review for impairment was performed on these natural gas properties. As a result of the review, our Chemical Business recognized a
non-cash impairment charge of $39.7 million to write-down the carrying value of our working interest in these natural gas properties to the estimated fair
value of $22.5 million as of September 30, 2015. See additional discussion below under “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” in this MD&A.

Pryor Downtime

Our Pryor Facility completed an annual Turnaround on August 4, 2015, which lasted 25 days. While restarting the plant, several mechanical issues were
encountered requiring management to take the plant out of service for additional repairs. The plant was restarted and resumed production on September 23,
2015, resulting in 45 days of unplanned downtime. During the third quarter of 2014, the Pryor Facility experienced 8 days of planned downtime and 13 days
of unplanned downtime. We estimate that the period of planned and unplanned downtime at our Pryor Facility during the third quarter of 2015 resulted in
reduced sales volumes of UAN and ammonia by approximately 18,300 tons and 22,200 tons, respectively, lowering our operating results compared to the
third quarter of 2014 approximately $15.6 million, which includes unabsorbed overhead expenses, costs of repair and lost profit margin.

Orica Agreement

As previously reported, EDC’s agreement with the Orica expired on April 9, 2015. The Orica Agreement included a provision for Orica to pay for fixed
overhead costs and gross profit on the portion of the annual minimum of product not taken. The annual fixed overhead and gross profit associated with the
240,000 tons was approximately $20 million. As a result during the third quarter of 2015, our El Dorado Facility had approximately $4.7 million less
contribution margin compared to the same period in 2014.

Subsequent to the expiration of the Orica Agreement, we are selling LDAN but at a relatively lower volume. Given that we remain a high cost producer, we
believe we will continue to experience lower volumes until the El Dorado ammonia plant construction is completed which production is expected to begin
early in the second quarter of 2016.

We have signed contracts with customers that, beginning in January of 2016, provide for the sale of LDAN for approximately 210,000 tons per year under
various cost plus pricing arrangements. We expect that these contracted annual volumes should supplant a majority of the previously contracted volume under
the Orica Agreement. Unlike the Orica Agreement, which contained take-or-pay provisions, these contracts include minimum annual volume levels with
penalty payments if minimum volumes are not met. However, as discussed in more detail above under “Key Industry Factors,” our LDAN sales volumes are
being impacted by the decline in coal production in the U.S.
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Debt and Interest Expense

During August of 2013, in connection with a major expansion of our El Dorado Facility, LSB sold $425 million of Senior Secured Notes. During the third
quarter of 2015 and 2014, interest expense was $0.9 million and $5.1 million, net of capitalized interest of $8.3 million and $3.9 million, respectively. Interest
was capitalized based upon construction in progress of the El Dorado expansion and certain other capital projects.

Results of Operations

The following Results of Operations should be read in conjunction with our condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2015 and 2014 and accompanying notes and the discussions under “Overview” and “Liquidity and Capital Resources” included in this
MD&A.

We present the following information about our results of operations for our two core business segments: the Chemical Business and the Climate Control
Business. The business operation classified as “Other” primarily sells industrial machinery and related components to machine tool dealers and end users. Net
sales by business segment include net sales to unaffiliated customers as reported in the consolidated financial statements. Intersegment net sales are not
significant. Gross profit (loss) by business segment represents net sales less cost of sales. Operating income (loss) by business segment represents gross profit
(loss) by business segment less SG&A incurred by each business segment plus other income and other expense earned/incurred by each business segment
before general corporate expenses. General corporate expenses consist of SG&A, other income and other expenses that are not allocated to one of our
business segments.
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The following table contains certain information about our continuing operations in different business segments on a consolidated basis for the three and nine
months ended September 30:

Three Months Nine Months
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In Thousands)
Net sales:
Chemical $ 80,623 $ 94,767 $320,205 $345,744
Climate Control 75,050 73,485 207,090 196,585
Other 2,012 2,794 6,907 8,904

$157,685  $171,046  $534,202  $551,233

Gross profit (loss):

Chemical $(10456) $ (521) $ 25001  $ 57,161
Climate Control 22,978 23,862 63,021 61,628
Other 757 1,045 2,498 3,188

$ 13279  $ 24386  $ 90,520  $121,977

Operating income (loss):

Chemical $ (55,046) $ (5,587) $ (31,546) $ 46,815
Climate Control 7,163 8,452 15,479 17,396
Other 169 397 745 1,298
General corporate expenses (7,173) (4,459) (22,782) (17,081)
(54,887) (1,197) (38,104) 48,428
Interest expense, net 877 5,079 6,505 17,458
Non-operating income, net:
Chemical (16) (73) (77) (213)
Climate Control — — “4) —
Corporate and other business operations @) (16) (26) (29)
Provisions (benefit) for income taxes (21,982) (2,415) (17,842) 12,286
Equity in earnings of affiliate - Climate Control — — — (79)
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (33,759) $ (3,772) $ (26,660) $ 19,005
Additions to property, plant and equipment:
Chemical $137,985 $ 68,748 $324,688 $170,890
Climate Control 71 622 497 1,797
Other — — 24 11
Corporate 20 24 291 109

$138,076 $ 69,394 $325,500 $172,807

Depreciation, depletion and amortization of property, plant and equipment:

Chemical $ 9,607 $ 7,702 $ 26,002 $ 22,462
Climate Control 1,143 1,347 3,468 3,644
Other 9 9 27 26
Corporate 156 1 454 289

$ 10,915 $ 9,059 $ 29,951 $ 26,421
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Three Months Ended September 30, 2015 Compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2014

Chemical Business

The following table contains certain information about our net sales, gross loss and operating loss in our Chemical segment for the three months ended
September 30:

M

Net sales:
Agricultural products

Industrial acids and other chemical products

Mining products
Other products

Total Chemical

Gross loss - Chemical

Gross loss percentage - Chemical (1)

Operating loss - Chemical

As a percentage of net sales

Percentage
2015 2014 Change Change
(Dollars In Thousands)
$ 29,196 $34,133 $ (4,937) (14.5)%
41,109 42,692 (1,583) (3.7)%
9,473 15,333 (5,860) (38.2)%
845 2,609 (1,764) (67.6)%
$ 80,623 $94,767 $(14,144) (14.9)%
W) $ (521) $ (9,935)
(13.0)% (0.5)% (12.5)%
$(55,046) $ (5,587) $(49,459)

The following tables provide key operating metrics for the agricultural products of our Chemical Business for the three months ended September 30:

Product (tons sold)

UAN
HDAN
Ammonia
Other

Total

Average Selling Prices (price per ton)

UAN
HDAN
Ammonia

Percentage

2014 Change Change
63,355 44,949 18,406 41%
16,165 24,411 (8,246) (34)%
15,976 24,699 (8,723) (35)%
3,514 4,522 (1,008) (22)%
99,010 98,581 429 — %
Percentage

2014 Change Change
$ 206 $ 233 $  (27) (12)%
$ 323 $ 360 $ @37 (10)%
$ 465 $ 480 $ (15) (3)%
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With respect to sales of industrial, mining and other chemical products, the following table indicates the volumes sold of our major products for the three
months ended September 30:

A)

Percentage
Product (tons sold) 2015 2014 Change Change
Nitric acid 144,290 139,801 4,489 3%
LDAN/HDAN (A) 11,746 12,735 (989) (8)%
AN Solution 28,771 23,790 4,981 21%
Ammonia 11,272 11,360 (88) (1)%

Total 196,079 187,686

Under the Orica Agreement that expired in early April 2015, Orica paid for 60,000 tons of AN in the third quarter of 2014, but actual tons sold to Orica
for the quarter were 11,022.

Net Sales — Chemical

In general, our third quarter 2015 agricultural sales were lower primarily due to lower sales volumes of ammonia and HDAN partially offset by increased
volume of UAN. In addition, sales prices decreased for our agricultural products. Mining sales also declined due to lower sales prices and volumes while
industrial product sales were slightly lower due to lower prices partially offset by higher sales volumes.

. Agricultural products comprised approximately 36% of the Chemical Business’ net sales for the third quarter 2015 and 2014. Agricultural
products sales decreased during the third quarter of 2015 primarily due to lower sales volume of ammonia caused by lower on-stream rates
experienced at our Pryor Facility resulting from 70 days of planned and unplanned downtime compared to 21 days of planned and unplanned
downtime during the third quarter of 2014 and a reduction of overall selling prices. In addition, sales of HDAN decreased due to lower sales
volume primarily the result of an increase in imports for nitrogen products, primarily Urea, combined with unfavorable weather conditions and
lower sales prices. The decrease in selling prices for HDAN resulted from dry weather conditions and an increase in nitrogen products, primarily
Urea, from importers. These agricultural sales decreases were partially offset by an increase in sales volume of UAN due primarily to higher on-
stream rates experienced at our Cherokee Facility as the result of no Turnaround being performed in the third quarter of 2015 and a 42 day
Turnaround performed in the third quarter of 2014 offset by lower sales volumes sold from our Pryor Facility and by lower overall selling prices.
The decrease in selling prices for UAN was attributable to lower commodity prices and lower urea prices that serve as an alternative to UAN.

. Industrial acids and other chemical products sales decreased as a result of lower prices from the pass-through of decreased ammonia costs to
contractual customers and lower volumes from the El Dorado Facility due to lower customer demand partially offset by increased volumes at the
Baytown and Cherokee Facilities.

. Mining products sales decreased primarily due to the expiration of the Orica Agreement in April 2015, which resulted in lower volumes and
lower prices from the pass-through of decreased ammonia costs to our contractual customers partially offset by increased volumes at the
Cherokee Facility.

. Other products relates to natural gas sales from our working interests in certain natural gas properties. The decrease in natural gas sales is due to

lower sales prices and lower production volumes. The lower production volumes are the result of the operator of these properties delaying
development due to the current low price of natural gas in the Marcellus Shale region.

Gross Loss - Chemical

As noted in the table above, our Chemical Business incurred a gross loss of $10.5 million for the third quarter of 2015 compared to a gross loss of $0.5
million in the third quarter of 2014. The loss increase of $9.9 million was primarily due to the lost absorption of fixed overhead costs associated the
lower on-stream production rate and maintenance expenses incurred at our Pryor Facility, the loss of the margin contribution relating to expiration of
the Orica Agreement, increased operating costs and the lower average sales prices partially offset by the higher on-stream rate at the Cherokee Facility
and lower overall feedstock costs. Natural gas feedstock costs decreased approximately 23% coupled with a 13% decrease in ammonia feedstock costs.
The positive impact from lower natural gas prices were partially offset by operating losses incurred relating to our working interests in certain natural
gas properties.
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Operating Loss - Chemical

. Our Chemical Business’ third quarter of 2015 operating loss was $55.0 million, a loss increase of $49.5 million compared to the third quarter of
2014 primarily as the result of the $39.7 million non-cash impairment charge to reduce the carrying value of our working interest in natural gas
properties in the Marcellus Shale region. Excluding the impairment charge, the increase in the loss was $9.8 million primarily as the result of the

items discussed above.

Climate Control Business

The following table contains certain information about our net sales, gross profit and operating income in our Climate Control segment for the three months

ended September 30:
Percentage
2015 2014 Change Change
(Dollars In Thousands)
Net sales:
Water source and geothermal heat pumps $41,953 $46,469 $(4,516) 9.7)%
Hydronic fan coils 19,031 16,534 2,497 15.1%
Other HVAC products 14,066 10,482 3,584 34.2%
Total Climate Control $75,050 $73,485 $ 1,565 2.1%
Gross profit - Climate Control $22,978 $23,862 $ (884)
Gross profit percentage - Climate Control (1) 30.6% 32.5% (1.99%
Operating income - Climate Control $ 7,163 $ 8,452 $(1,289)
(1) As apercentage of net sales
The following table provides sales by market sector in our Climate Control Business for the three months ended September 30:
2015 2014
(Dollars in Thousands)
Sector Sector Percentage
Sales by Market Sector Sales Mix Sales Mix Change
Commercial/Institutional $66,389 88% $61,489 84% 8%
Residential 8,661 12% 11,996 16% (28)%
$75,050 $73,485 2%
Product Product Percentage
Sales by Product Category Sales Mix Sales Mix Change
Water source and geothermal heat pumps $41,953 56% $46,469 63% (10)%
Hydronic fan coils 19,031 25% 16,534 23% 15%
Other HVAC products 14,066 19% 10,482 14% 34%
$75,050 $73,485 2%
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Net Sales — Climate Control

Net sales of our water source and geothermal heat pump products decreased in the third quarter of 2015 as a result of a 28% decline in our
residential sales and a 3% decline on sales of our commercial/institutional products. It should be noted that (excluding the loss of the Carrier
business) sales of our commercial/institutional products in the third quarter of 2015 were up 3% over 2014. Carrier was allowed to purchase
commercial water source and geothermal heat pump products for a brief period beyond the May 2014 contract termination date and continues to
purchase spare parts as needed. From a commercial/institutional market perspective, gains were seen in the retail and multi-family sectors offset
by a reduction in the education sector. Incoming orders for commercial/institutional products decreased 11% and residential products decreased
23%.

Net sales of our hydronic fan coils increased as a result of an increased number of units sold due to stronger incoming orders in the first quarter,
an increase in the average unit price and favorable product mix. We experienced only minor fluctuations in the vertical markets served.

Net sales of our other HVAC products increased primarily due to increased sales of our large custom air handlers and our engineering and
construction services which were up 89% and 36% respectively, partially offset by a decrease in our modular chillers sales. In our large custom
air handler products, higher incoming order levels during 2014 and customer scheduled delivery dates resulted in higher beginning backlogs in
2015 and facilitated higher sales during third quarter of 2015. Our engineering and construction services increased due to a project award
received earlier in the year that we expect to be completed in the fourth quarter of 2015. The decline in modular chiller sales was the result of a
push out of customer requested delivery dates as new product order levels and backlog were comparable. From a vertical market perspective,
there were no significant shifts in the sectors served.

Gross Profit - Climate Control

The decrease in gross profit and gross profit percentage in our Climate Control Business was primarily the result of unfavorable product mix as
residential products which carry a higher gross margin declined in proportion to commercial/institutional products and as margins on large
custom air handlers and in engineering and construction services typically are lower than most of our other product lines. In addition, gross profit
was impacted by unfavorable labor and overhead absorption due to lower overall units produced.

Operating Income - Climate Control

Operating income in the third quarter of 2015 declined by $1.3 million compared to the same period of 2014. The decrease in operating income is
primarily the result of lower gross profit discussed above combined with higher variable selling expenses (warranty of $0.5 million due to higher
sales volume and specific claims in our hydronic fan coil business and freight of $0.5 million due to higher sales volume and freight rates
partially offset by lower personnel related expenses of $0.4 million (salaries, wages and benefits) and advertising expenses of $0.3 million.

General Corporate Expenses

General corporate expenses consist of SG&A, other income and other expense that are not allocated to one of our business segments. General corporate
expenses for the third quarter of 2015 were approximately $7.2 million compared to $4.5 million for the same period in 2014. The increase primarily relates
to personnel related expenses (largely associated with severance arrangements to senior executives) and professional fees.

Interest Expense, net

Interest expense for the third quarter of 2015 was $0.9 million compared to $5.1 million for the same period in 2014. The decrease is due primarily to
capitalized interest on capital projects under development and construction, of which $8.3 million capitalized in the third quarter of 2015 compared to $3.9
million capitalized during third quarter of 2014.

Benefit for Income Taxes

The benefit for income taxes for the third quarter of 2015 was $22 million compared to a benefit of $2.4 million for the same period in 2014. The resulting
effective tax rate for the third quarters of 2015 and 2014 was 39%.
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Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

Chemical Business

The following table contains certain information about our net sales, gross profit and operating income (loss) in our Chemical segment for the nine months

ended September 30:

M

Net sales:
Agricultural products

Industrial acids and other chemical products

Mining products
Other products
Total Chemical

Gross profit - Chemical

Gross profit percentage - Chemical (1)

Operating income (loss) - Chemical

As a percentage of net sales

2015 2014 Change
(Dollars In Thousands)
$158,391 $169,046 $(10,655)
120,790 118,202 2,588
37,880 48,466 (10,586)
3,144 10,030 (6,886)
$320,205 $345,744 $(25,539)
$ 25,001 $ 57,161 $(32,160)
7.8% 16.5% (8.7)%

$ (31,546) $ 46,815 $(78,361)

Percentage

Change

(6.3)%
2.2%
(21.8)%
(68.7)%
(7.4)%

The following tables provide key operating metrics for the agricultural products of our Chemical Business for the nine months ended September 30:

Product (tons sold)
UAN

HDAN
Ammonia
Other

Total

Average Selling Prices (price per ton)

UAN
HDAN
Ammonia

2015 2014 Change
268,716 231,153 37,563
141,284 184,449 (43,165)

69,504 65,148 4,356

16,160 23,479 (7,319)
495,664 504,229 (8,565)

2015 2014 Change

$ 239 $ 259 $  (20)
$ 325 $ 332 $ O
$ 506 $ 481 $ 25
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With respect to sales of industrial, mining and other chemical products, the following table indicates the volumes sold of our major products for the nine
months ended September 30:

Percentage
Product (tons sold) 2015 2014 Change Change
Nitric acid 409,360 396,027 13,333 3%
LDAN/HDAN (A) 55,352 53,131 2,221 4%
AN Solution 74,685 80,333 (5,648) 1%
Ammonia 30,260 32,545 (2,285) N%

Total 569,657 562,036

(A) Under the Orica Agreement that expired in early April 2015, Orica paid for 180,000 tons of AN in the first nine months of 2014, but actual tons sold to
Orica for the period were 47,876. In 2015, Orica paid for 60,000 tons of AN, but actual tons sold through the end of the contract period were 25,990.

Net Sales — Chemical

In general, in the first nine months of 2015 our agricultural sales were lower primarily due to lower sales volume and prices for HDAN, lower sales prices for
UAN partially offset by increased sales volumes of UAN and higher sales volume and prices for ammonia. Mining sales also declined primarily due to lower
sales prices and volumes while sales of industrial products increased.

Agricultural products comprised approximately 50% of the Chemical Business’ net sales for both periods. Sales decreased during the first nine
months of 2015 primarily due to lower sales volume of HDAN driven by adverse weather conditions in much of our markets causing decreased
customer demand and lower prices for other nitrogen products. This decrease was partially offset by increased sales volume of UAN and
ammonia, due in part to a higher sales volume from the Pryor Facility as the result of improved on-stream rates for producing UAN, and an
increase in selling prices for ammonia. However the selling prices were lower for UAN, which was attributable to lower commodity prices
coupled with lower urea prices due to the large amount of imports putting pressure on pricing.

Industrial acids and other chemical products sales increased as a result of increased volumes at our Baytown Facility (which performed a
Turnaround in the second quarter of 2014) and at our Cherokee Facility, partially offset by lower prices from the pass-through of decreased
ammonia costs to contractual customers and lower volumes from the El Dorado Facility due to lower customer demand.

Mining products sales decreased primarily due to the expiration of the Orica Agreement in early April 2015 and the resulting lower sales volume
of LDAN and as a result of lower volumes at our Cherokee Facility from a continued decline of demand for mining products in the Appalachian
region combined with lower product selling prices.

Other products relates to natural gas sales from our working interests in certain natural gas properties. The decrease in natural gas sales is due to
lower sales prices in the Marcellus Shale region and lower production volumes as the operator of these properties has slowed development due to
the decline in natural gas pricing.

Gross Profit - Chemical

Our gross profit decreased $32.2 million during the first nine months of 2015 as compared to the same period of 2014. The first nine months of
2014 included a business interruption insurance recovery of $22.9 million. Excluding the business interruption insurance recovery, gross profit
decreased $9.3 million in the first nine months of 2015 as compared to the same period last year. The decrease of $9.3 million was primarily due
to the loss of the margin contribution relating to the expiration of the Orica Agreement, lost absorption of fixed overhead costs associated with
lower production of HDAN, lower average sales prices, increased operating costs partially offset by the higher overall on-stream rate at the
Cherokee Facility and lower feedstock costs. Natural gas feedstock costs decreased approximately 27%. The positive impact from lower natural
gas prices was partially offset by operating losses incurred relating to our working interests in certain natural gas properties.
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Operating Income (Loss) - Chemical

. Our Chemical Business’ operating loss was $31.5 million, a decrease of $78.4 million. This decrease includes the $39.7 million non-cash
impairment charge to reduce the carrying value of our working interest in natural gas properties in the first nine months of 2015. In addition to
the business interruption insurance recovery included in gross profit discussed above, a property insurance recovery of $5.1 million for a total
insurance recovery of $28.0 million, was recognized in the first nine months of 2014. Excluding the impairment charge of $39.7 million in 2015
and the total insurance recoveries of $28.0 million in 2014, operating income decreased $10.7 million primarily as the result of the decrease in
gross profit discussed above and increased product handling (railcar lease costs), personnel and training expenses, primarily related to the
expansion related activities at the El Dorado Facility.

Climate Control Business

The following table contains certain information about our net sales, gross profit and operating income in our Climate Control segment for the nine months
ended September 30:

Percentage
2015 2014 Change Change
(Dollars In Thousands)
Net sales:
Water source and geothermal heat pumps $118,153 $126,849 $(8,696) (6.9)%
Hydronic fan coils 51,671 44,234 7,437 16.8%
Other HVAC products 37,266 25,502 11,764 46.1%
Total Climate Control $207,090 $196,585 $10,505 5.3%
Gross profit - Climate Control $ 63,021 $ 61,628 $ 1,393
Gross profit percentage - Climate Control (1) 30.4% 31.3% (0.9)%
Operating income - Climate Control $ 15,479 $ 17,396 $(1,917)

(1) As apercentage of net sales
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The following table provides sales by market sector by our Climate Control Business for the nine months ended September 30:

2015 2014
(Dollars in Thousands)
Sector Sector Percentage
Sales by Market Sector Sales Mix Sales Mix Change
Commercial/Institutional $180,805 87% $165,543 84% 9%
Residential 26,285 13% 31,042 16% (15)%
$207,090 $196,585 5%
Product Product Percentage
Sales by Product Category Sales Mix Sales Mix Change
Water source and geothermal heat pumps $118,153 57% $126,849 65% (M %
Hydronic fan coils 51,671 25% 44,234 22% 17%
Other HVAC products 37,266 18% 25,502 13% 46%
$207,090 $196,585 5%

Net Sales — Climate Control

Net sales of our water source and geothermal heat pump products decreased in the first nine months of 2015 primarily as a result of the loss of the
Carrier heat pump contracts. Excluding Carrier heat pump sales, sales increased from $112 million in the first nine months of 2014 to $118
million in the first nine months of 2015, or approximately 5% with commercial/institutional product sales increasing approximately 9%, primarily
due to higher incoming order levels in the preceding quarters and residential product sales decreasing approximately 7% related to lower
incoming order levels. The increase in commercial/institutional product sales were driven by gains in the retail and multi-family sectors with a
slight decline in the education sector. Incoming orders, excluding Carrier, for commercial/institutional products declined 2% while residential
products declined 11%. The decline in residential products (geothermal heat pumps) was driven by low natural gas prices causing a longer
installation cost payback period.

Net sales of our hydronic fan coils increased as a result of an increase number of units sold due to stronger incoming orders in the preceding
quarters, an increase in the average unit price and favorable product mix. We experienced only minor fluctuations in the vertical markets served.

Net sales of our other HVAC products increased primarily due to increased sales of our large custom air handlers and modular chillers, up 93%
and 11%, respectively, partially offset by a reduction in sales of our engineering and construction services due to contract award delays. In our
large custom air handler and modular chiller products, incoming order levels and customer requested delivery dates during 2014 resulted in
higher beginning backlogs in 2015 and facilitated higher sales during the first nine months of 2015. From a vertical market perspective, there
were no significant shifts in the sectors served.

Gross Profit - Climate Control

+ The increase in gross profit in our Climate Control Business was primarily the result of the higher sales discussed above. The lower gross profit as a

percentage of sales was primarily the result of product mix as residential products, which carry a higher gross margin declined in proportion to
commercial/institutional products and as margins on large custom air handlers and engineering and construction services are lower than those of
other product lines.

Operating Income - Climate Control

Operating income in the first nine months of 2015 declined by $1.9 million compared to the same period of 2014. The decrease in operating
income was due to higher variable selling expenses (freight of $1.5 million due to higher sales volume and freight rates; warranty of $1.3 million
due higher sales volume as well as specific claims in our hydronic fan coil and large custom air handler businesses; and commissions of $0.7
million due to higher sales volume and customer mix) and personnel related expenses of $0.4 million (salaries, wages and benefits), partially
offset by lower spending in advertising, consulting fees, travel and entertainment.
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General Corporate Expenses

General corporate expenses for the first nine months of 2015 were $22.8 million compared to $17.1 million for the same period in 2014 or an increase of $5.7
million. The increase primarily related to an increase in personnel related expenses (severance arrangements for certain senior executives, salaries and number
of employees), directors’ fees (number of independent board members and related quarterly fees), professional fees and amortization of software costs
(implementation of the new enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system).

Interest Expense, net

Interest expense for the first nine months of 2015 was $6.5 million compared to $17.5 million for the same period in 2014. The decrease is due primarily to
capitalized interest on capital projects under development and construction, of which $20.9 million was capitalized in the first nine months of 2015 compared
to $9.2 million during the same period of 2014.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes

The benefit for income taxes for the first nine months of 2015 was $17.8 million compared to a provision of $12.3 million for the same period in 2014. The
resulting effective tax rate for the first nine months of 2015 was 40% and 39% for the first nine months of 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As discussed below under “Capitalization”, our primary cash needs relate to completing our current capital projects in addition to our scheduled debt
requirements. Our cash requirements are primarily dependent on credit agreements, various forms of financing, including the financing commitment received
from Security Benefit Corporation and one or more of its affiliates, and through internally generated cash flows. Without those financing sources and the new
commitment, we would be unable to continue to fund our El Dorado Expansion projects and would have to delay or terminate those projects or find other
liquidity sources. See “—Key Capital Expenditure and Financing Developments.” Our operating activities continue to generate positive cash flows through
September 30, 2015. Before discussing our capitalization and capital projects in detail, the following summarizes our cash flow activities for the nine months
ended September 30, 2015:

Cash Flow from Continuing Operating Activities

Net cash provided by continuing operating activities was $42.5 million primarily as the result of a net loss of $26.7 million plus adjustments of $39.7 million
for the impairment of natural gas properties, $30.0 million for depreciation, depletion and amortization of PP&E less $13.1 million for deferred income taxes
and net cash provided of $9.2 million primarily from our working capital.

Cash Flow from Continuing Investing Activities

Net cash used by continuing investing activities was $231.7 million that consisted primarily of $300.8 million used for expenditures for PP&E primarily for
the benefit of our Chemical Business partially offset by proceeds of $71.0 million from restricted cash and cash equivalents and investments primarily
representing funds designated by management for specific capital projects relating to our Chemical Business.

Cash Flow from Continuing Financing Activities

Net cash provided by continuing financing activities was $26.5 million that primarily related to net proceeds from long-term financing and from our revolving
debt facility totaling $44.4 million partially offset by payments on short-term financing and long-term debt of $19.8 million.
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Capitalization

The following is our total current and noncurrent cash and investments, long-term debt and stockholders’ equity:

September 30, December 31,
2015 2014
(In Millions)
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 39.0 $ 2013
Noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents and investments — 71.0
Total current and noncurrent cash and investments $ 39.0 $ 2723
Long-term debt:
Working Capital Revolver loan $ 13.3 $ —
Senior Secured Notes due 2019 425.0 425.0
Secured Promissory Note due 2016 17.6 22.8
Secured Promissory Note due 2021 16.2 —
Secured Promissory Note due 2022 15.0 —
Other 9.3 9.5
Total long-term debt, including current portion $ 496.4 $ 4573
Total stockholders’ equity $ 411.0 $ 4340

As of September 30, 2015, our current cash and investments totaled $39.0 million. In addition, our $100 million revolving credit facility had $57.6 million of
additional borrowing available to fund operations as discussed below, if needed, subject to the amount of our eligible collateral and outstanding letters of
credit.

As discussed in “—Key Capital Expenditure and Financing Developments,” over the course of September and October, management in conjunction with the
owner’s representative, the engineering, procurement and construction contractor and other consultants determined that the total cost to complete the El
Dorado Expansion projects will exceed what we previously projected, due, in part, to mechanical and piping labor cost increases compared to earlier
estimates. We have now determined that the total cost to complete the El Dorado Expansion projects is estimated to be in the range of $831 million to $855
million ($564 million spent as of September 30, 2015 and $197 million to $216 million to be spent in the fourth quarter of 2015 and between $70 million to
$75 million to be spent in 2016).

In order to finance these additional costs, and for the reasons discussed in “—Key Capital Expenditure and Financing Developments,” on November 6, 2015,
we obtained from Security Benefit Corporation and one or more of its affiliates a commitment for financing primarily for the purpose of completing our El
Dorado Expansion projects. The commitment is for $260 million of capital in the form of debt, preferred stock, and common stock warrants; and its
completion is subject to negotiation and finalization of definitive documents and other customary conditions. We believe that the funding provided in the
commitment, when completed, together with our other sources of liquidity, will be sufficient for our anticipated liquidity needs through completion of the El
Dorado Expansion project.

During September 2015, we completed the financing of the ammonia storage tank and received an initial funding of $15 million with the remainder of $4.8
million to be received at the completion of construction of the ammonia storage tank, which is scheduled in second quarter of 2016. We are currently
negotiating with a third party lender for the financing for a certain discrete piece of equipment in connection with the El Dorado Expansion projects.
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As discussed in Note 14 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, during October 2015, EDA and EDC, entered into the Amendment Agreement
with Leidos, which among other things, extended the payment terms to net 60 days for certain invoices not to exceed $50 million outstanding at any time. In
addition, the Amendment Agreement provides that within 72 hours after closing financing for the remainder of all the projects in the contracts with Leidos,
but no later than December 10, 2015, EDA and EDCC will pay to Leidos all outstanding invoices that are more than 30 days old and all remaining
outstanding invoices will revert to net 30 day terms.

If for some reason we are unable to complete these financings or there is a shortfall in our internally generated cash flow, either of which would negatively
affect our ability to fund all of the discretionary capital projects we had planned to complete or initiate during the balance of 2015 and 2016, we would be
required to reduce, delay the start of, or terminate at least some of our capital projects, which could have a material and adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We are party to an indenture, dated August 7, 2013 governing the Senior Secured Notes (the “Senior Secured Notes Indenture”). The Senior Secured Notes
Indenture contains covenants that, among other things, limit LSB’s ability, with certain exceptions and as defined in the Senior Secured Notes Indenture, to
certain transactions.

We and certain of our subsidiaries are party to an amended revolving credit facility. Pursuant to the terms of the Working Capital Revolver Loan, the principal
amount the Borrowers may borrow is up to $100.0 million, based on specific percentages of eligible accounts receivable and inventories. At October 31,
2015, there were $20.6 million in outstanding borrowings under the Working Capital Revolver Loan.

Capital Additions
Capital Additions — First Nine Months of 2015

Capital additions during the first nine months of 2015 were $330.5 million, including $326.6 million for the benefit of our Chemical Business. The Chemical
Business capital additions included $302.2 million for expansion projects at our El Dorado Facility (which capital additions include equipment associated
with maintaining compliance with environmental laws, regulations and guidelines), $17.2 million for various major renewal and improvement projects, $3.2
million for the development of natural gas leaseholds, $4.4 million relating to the new ERP system, and an additional $2.1 million associated with
maintaining compliance with environmental laws, regulations and guidelines. The capital additions were funded primarily from noncurrent restricted cash and
investments, working capital and third-party financing. Due to the increase in the amount of capital additions incurred and planned, our depreciation,
depletion and amortization expenses have increased and are expected to continue to increase during the remainder of 2015 and future years.

Planned Capital Additions

Planned Capital
Additions
(In Millions)

Chemical:
El Dorado Facility Expansion Projects (1) $267 - $291
Development of Natural Gas Leaseholds (2) 1 - 2
Environmental Projects (2) 2 - 3
Major Renewal and Improvement Projects (2) 1 - 2
Other (2) (3) 8 - 9
Total Chemical $279 - $307
Climate Control (2) 0 - 1
Corporate and Other (2) 1 - 2

(1) Includes planned capital additions of approximately $70 million - $75 million in 2016.
(2) Includes planned capital additions through December 2015.
(3) Includes cost associated with savings initiatives, new market development, and other capital projects.
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Included in planned capital expenditures is capitalized interest of approximately $10 million for the fourth quarter of 2015. The planned capital expenditures
for Corporate and Other are primarily for the replacement of our enterprise resource planning, financial and operations management system. The new ERP
system replaces our legacy systems, which are out-of-date and largely unsupported, and will improve our access to operational and financial information
utilized to manage the business and improve our security and regulatory compliance capability. This project began in 2013 and is expected to be fully
implemented in 2016 at a total cost of $25 million to $27 million.

Planned capital expenditures are presented as a range to provide for engineering estimates, the status of bidding, variable material costs, unplanned delays in
construction, and other contingencies. As the engineering, design, and bidding processes progress and project construction proceeds, the estimated costs are
more certain and the range of estimates narrows. The planned capital expenditures include investments that we anticipate making for expansion and
development projects, environmental requirements, and major renewal and improvement projects. Beyond the completion of the expansion projects, specific
capital projects are less identified but are expected to include approximately $40 million to $60 million per year at our chemical facilities for ongoing capital
maintenance, including environmental compliance, major renewal and improvement projects, and other capital projects, and approximately $20 million from
2016-2019 to fully develop our natural gas working interests.

El Dorado Facility Expansion Projects

The El Dorado Facility has certain expansion projects underway, of which a portion of these have been completed. These expansion projects include an
ammonia production plant; a new 65% strength nitric acid plant and concentrator; and other support infrastructure, all of which were analyzed and evaluated
based on their forecasted return on investment. The expected costs of these projects are outlined below, which planned amounts are included in the table
above.

Planned Capital Additions

Capitalized For the Remainder
To Date of the Project Total
(In Millions)

Ammonia Plant $ 322 $ 153 - $ 167 $475 - $489
Nitric Acid Plant and Concentrator 113 13 - 14 126 - 127
Other Support Infrastructure 96 35 - 43 131 - 139
Capitalized Interest 33 20 - 21 53 - 54
Contingency — 46 - 46 46 - 46

$ 564 $ 267 - $ 291 $831 - $855

Our El Dorado Facility produces nitric acid, HDAN and LDAN from purchased ammonia, which is currently at a cost disadvantage compared to products
produced from natural gas. The El Dorado Facility historically purchased 600-700 tons of ammonia per day when operating at full capacity. We are
constructing a 1,150 ton per day ammonia production plant at the El Dorado Facility, which we believe should eliminate the cost disadvantage, increase
capacity, and improve efficiency of the El Dorado Facility. This project is expected to be operational early in the second quarter of 2016.

In addition, we are constructing a new 1,100 ton per day, 65% strength nitric acid plant and concentrator to replace the concentrated nitric acid capacity lost in
May 2012. The concentrator was recently completed, the nitric acid plant is scheduled to begin production in November and are designed to be more efficient
and provide increased nitric acid production capacity.

As aresult of the increased production capacity at the El Dorado Facility, it is necessary to expand and improve certain support infrastructure, including
utility capacity, control room facilities, inventory storage and handling, and ammonia distribution. Also, other cost reduction and cost recovery equipment,
including an electric cogeneration plant, are being added to improve efficiency and lower the cost of production.
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Expenses Associated with Environmental Regulatory Compliance

Our Chemical Business is subject to specific federal and state environmental compliance laws, regulations and guidelines. As a result, our Chemical Business
incurred expenses of $4.2 million in the first nine months of 2015 in connection with maintaining environmental regulatory compliance. For the remainder of
2015, we expect to incur an additional $1.1 million to $1.4 million of these expense. However, it is possible that the actual costs could be significantly
different than our estimates.

Dividends

During the first quarter of 2015, dividends totaling $300,000 were declared and paid on our outstanding preferred stocks using funds from our working
capital.

Compliance with Long - Term Debt Covenants

The Working Capital Revolver Loan requires, among other things, that we meet certain financial covenants, including a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio
of not less than 1.10 to 1.0, if at any time the excess availability (as defined in the Working Capital Revolver Loan), under the Working Capital Revolver
Loan, is less than or equal to $12.5 million. This ratio will be measured monthly on a trailing twelve month basis and as defined in the agreement. As of
September 30, 2015, the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (as defined in the Working Capital Revolver Loan) was 3.2 to 1. Currently, our forecast is that we will
be able to meet all financial covenant requirements for the next twelve months.

Seasonality

We believe chemical products sold by our Chemical Business to the agricultural industry are seasonal while sales into the industrial and mining sectors are
not. The selling seasons for agricultural products are primarily during the spring and fall planting seasons, which typically extend from March through June
and from September through November in the geographical markets in which the majority of our agricultural products are distributed. As a result, our
Chemical Business typically increases its inventory of AN prior to the beginning of each planting season. In addition, the amount and timing of sales to the
agricultural markets depend upon weather conditions and other circumstances beyond our control.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

See our discussion on critical accounting policies and estimates in Item 7 of our 2014 Form 10-K and for the items noted below. In addition, the preparation
of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses,
and disclosures of contingencies and fair values. It is reasonably possible that the estimates and assumptions utilized as of September 30, 2015 could change
in the near-term.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset (asset group) may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of an asset (asset group)
exceeds the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset (asset group) and its eventual disposition. If assets to be held
and used are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is the amount by which the carrying amounts of the assets exceed the fair values of
the assets as measured by the present value of future net cash flows expected to be generated by the assets or their appraised value. As it relates to natural gas
properties, proven natural gas properties are reviewed for impairment on a field-by-field basis and nonproducing leasehold costs are reviewed for impairment
on a property-by-property basis.

As of September 30, 2015, our Chemical Business recognized an impairment charge of $39.7 million to write-down the carrying value of our working interest
in natural gas properties in the Marcellus Shale region to their estimated fair value of $22.5 million. The impairment charge represented the amount by which
the carrying value of these natural gas properties exceeded the estimated fair value and was therefore not recoverable. The estimated fair value was
determined based on estimated future discounted net cash flows, a Level 3 input, using estimated production and prices at which we reasonably expect natural
gas will be sold, including the Evaluation provided by our independent consulting petroleum engineer in October 2015. The impairment was due to the
decline in prices for natural gas futures, large natural gas price differentials in the Marcellus Shale region and changes in the drilling plans of these natural gas
properties that caused certain of these properties to be reclassified from the “proved undeveloped reserves” category to the “probable undeveloped reserves”
category included in the Evaluation because those properties are no longer likely to be developed within five years.
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The non-cash impairment charge was included in the condensed consolidated statements of operations line item impairment of natural gas properties for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2015.

Contingencies — Certain conditions may exist which may result in a loss, but which will only be resolved when future events occur. We and our legal counsel
assess such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. If the assessment of a contingency indicates that it is
probable that a loss has been incurred, we would accrue for such contingent losses when such losses can be reasonably estimated. If the assessment indicates
that a potentially material loss contingency is not probable but reasonably possible, or is probable but cannot be estimated, the nature of the contingent
liability, together with an estimate of the range of possible loss if determinable and material, would be disclosed. Estimates of potential legal fees and other
directly related costs associated with contingencies are not accrued but rather are expensed as incurred. Loss contingency liabilities are included in current
and noncurrent accrued and other liabilities and are based on current estimates that may be revised in the near term. In addition, we recognize contingent
gains when such gains are realized or realizable and earned.

We are involved in various environmental and legal matters that require management to make estimates and assumptions, including costs relating to a
corrective action study work plan approved by the KDHE discussed under footnote 3 — Other Environmental Matters of Note 8 to Condensed Consolidated

of Note 8. It is possible that the actual costs could be significantly different than our estimates.

Performance and Payment Bonds

We are contingently liable to sureties in respect of insurance bonds issued by the sureties in connection with certain contracts entered into by subsidiaries in
the normal course of business. These insurance bonds primarily represent guarantees of future performance of our subsidiaries. As of September 30, 2015, we
have agreed to indemnify the sureties for payments, up to $17.3 million, made by them in respect of such bonds. All of these insurance bonds are expected to
expire or be renewed in 2015.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act.

Aggregate Contractual Obligations

In the operation of our businesses, we enter into contracts, leases and borrowing arrangements. As discussed in our 2014 Form 10-K, we had certain
contractual obligations as of December 31, 2014, with various maturity dates, showing payments due for the next five years and thereafter related to the
following:

. long-term debt,

. interest payments on long-term debt,
. interest rate contracts,

. El Dorado facility expansion projects,
. other capital expenditures,

. operating leases,

. natural gas pipeline commitment,

. firm purchase commitments and,

. other contractual obligations.

During the third quarter of 2015, we received an initial funding of $15 million pursuant to the Secured Promissory Note due 2022 as discussed in Note 7 to
the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and entered into contracts to purchase 5.1 million MMBtu of natural gas through December 2016, which
contracts are included in the discussion in Note 8.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

General

Our results of operations and operating cash flows are impacted by changes in market prices of copper, steel, ammonia and natural gas, changes in market
interest rates, and changes in market currency exchange rates.

Forward Sales Commitments Risk

Periodically, our Chemical and Climate Control Businesses enter into forward firm sales commitments for products to be delivered in future periods. As a
result, we could be exposed to embedded losses should our product costs exceed the firm sales prices. At September 30, 2015, we had no embedded losses
associated with sales commitments with firm sales prices relating to our Chemical Business.

Commodity Price Risk

Our Chemical Business buys substantial quantities of natural gas (as a feedstock) and platinum (as a catalyst in the manufacturing process) generally at
market prices and our Climate Control Business buys substantial quantities of copper for use in manufacturing processes. As part of our raw material price
risk management, periodically, our Chemical Business enters into firm purchase commitments and/or futures/forward contracts for natural gas and our
Climate Control Business enters into futures contracts for copper, which are discussed in Note 9 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. Our
Chemical Business has also acquired working interests in natural gas properties to serve as an economic hedge against potential higher natural gas prices for a
portion of our future natural gas requirements.

Certain subsidiaries within the Chemical Business entered into contracts to purchase natural gas for anticipated production needs. A portion of these contracts
are considered derivatives and are accounted for on a mark-to-market basis; which are discussed in Note 9, and a portion of these contracts are considered
normal purchases because they provide for the purchase of natural gas that will be delivered in quantities expected to be used over a reasonable period of time
in the normal course of business and are documented as such. These contracts are exempt from the accounting and reporting requirements relating to
derivatives, which are discussed in Note 8.

Interest Rate Risk

Our interest rate risk exposure results from our debt portfolio that is impacted by short-term rates, primarily variable-rate borrowings from commercial banks,
and long-term rates, primarily fixed-rate notes, some of which prohibit prepayment or require a substantial premium payment with the prepayment. As part of
our interest rate risk management, we periodically purchase and/or enter into various interest rate contracts, which are discussed in Note 9 to the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements. At September 30, 2015, we did not have any financial instruments with fair values significantly different from their
carrying amounts, except for the Senior Secured Notes. At September 30, 2015, the carrying value of the Senior Secured Notes exceeded the estimated fair
value by approximately $15 million based on a quoted price of 96.5, which is also discussed in Note 9.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act designed to provide reasonable assurance that
the information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports in files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. These include controls and procedures designed to ensure that this information is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30, 2015. Based on this evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of September 30, 2015, at the
reasonable assurance level.
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During the third quarter of 2014, we began implementing a new enterprise resource planning system. We are implementing this system in discreet phases
during the next few years. As a result, this implementation requires us to monitor and maintain appropriate internal control over financial reporting during this
transition. While we expect that our internal controls over financial reporting will remain largely similar or unchanged, it is possible that during each future
phase of the implementation, we may make changes to our internal control over financial reporting that could materially affect our internal control over
financial reporting. In addition, it is possible that during each phase of the implementation, we may make changes to our internal control over financial
reporting that did not materially affect our internal control over financial reporting, but, when fully implemented, the cumulative effect of the changes made
may be considered material.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains “Forward-Looking Statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, which involve substantial risks and uncertainties. In this report, all statements other than statements of historical or current facts,
including statements about our future financial condition, business strategy, plans and objectives and the assumptions underlying those statements, are
forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “believe,” “will,” “may,” “estimate,”
“continue,” “aim,” “assume,” “anticipate,” “contemplate,” “intend,” “target,” “project,” “should,” “plan,” “expect,” “predict,” “could,” “possible,” “seek,”
“goal” “potential,” “likely” or the negative of these terms or other similar terms or expressions that concern our expectations, strategy, plans, or intentions.
Forward-looking statements appear in many places throughout this report and include statements about our intentions, beliefs, projections, outlook, analyses,
or expectations concerning, among other things:

 « ” « 2« 2«

«  expected costs to complete the El Dorado Expansion projects and other expected cash needs;
*  our ability to close on our financing commitment received in November 2015, and the expected timing of funding under the commitment;
« the expected benefits and costs of various financing options and other operating and strategic decisions;
*  our ability to enter into additional borrowings or to sell assets;
+ completing the El Dorado expansion project during 2015 and 2016;
» the results from the El Dorado expansion project;
»  future cost of our capital projects and the timing of those costs;
¢ downtime at our Chemical Business facilities;
*  requirements for purchased ammonia;
+ the construction and sales outlook for the markets we serve and the products we sell in the Climate Control Business;
«  the outlook of our chemical products and related markets;
*  demand for our geothermal products;
*  shipment of backlog;
» effect of the expiration of the Orica contract and replacing lost annual volumes;
« effect of our ongoing Operational Excellence activities;
+  the results of our strategy for our Climate Control Business;
* eliminating our external ammonia purchase requirements;
+  changes in domestic fertilizer production and/or demand;
* increasing output and capacity of our existing production facilities;
» stimulating sales of our geothermal heat pump products, and other “green” products;
+ eliminating the current ammonia cost disadvantage;
+  improved sales in 2015 for our Climate Control Business;
« completing the ERP implementation in 2016;
*  costs to develop properties attributable to our natural gas working interests;
» sufficient sources for materials and components;
»  compliance by the El Dorado Facility of the terms of its permits;
+ dissolved mineral issue should not be an issue since the pipeline is operational;
*  costs of compliance with environmental laws, health laws, security regulations and transportation regulations;
*  when Turnarounds will be performed and completed;
*  costs of Turnarounds during the remainder of 2015;
*  whether we have reduced or eliminated unexpected interruptions in our operations;
*  expenses in connection with environmental projects;
+ the increase in depreciation, depletion and amortization;
*  benefits from the El Dorado expansion projects;
«  meeting all required covenant tests for the next twelve months; and
» changes to internal controls over financial reporting.
These statements involve risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be

materially different from the information expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. We may not have identified all the risks and uncertainties
that may affect these statements, and many may be affected by events
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outside of our control. The forward-looking statements and views contained in this report are based upon information available to us as of the date of this
report. While we believe the information provides us a reasonable basis for our forward-looking statements, the information may be limited or incomplete,
and our statements should not be read to indicate that we have conducted an exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all potentially available relevant
information. A variety of factors could cause future outcomes to differ materially from those described in this report, including, but not limited to, the
following:

+ our liquidity, including cash flows and substantial existing indebtedness;
»  our ability to secure additional financing, and the terms on which we may obtain additional financing;

» the effect of our additional financing on our existing shareholders, debt holders and operations, including as a result of additional covenants, governance
changes and dilution;

+ the timing and cost of completing the El Dorado expansion project;

*  our ability to sell assets or operations on favorable terms to generate cash;

»  changes in general economic conditions, both domestic and foreign;

«  material reduction in revenues;

*  material changes in interest rates;

*  costs, management distraction, and potential liabilities associated with shareholder and other litigation;
+ ability to collect in a timely manner a material amount of receivables;

* increased competitive pressures;

» adverse effect on increases in prices of raw materials;

» changes in federal, state and local laws and regulations, especially environmental regulations or the American Reinvestment and Recovery act, or in
interpretation of such;

* releases of pollutants into the environment exceeding our permitted limits;

+  material increases in equipment, maintenance, operating or labor costs not presently anticipated by us;
» the requirement to use internally generated funds for purposes not presently anticipated;

* material changes in the cost of certain precious metals, ammonia, natural gas, copper, steel and purchased components;
+ limitations due to financial covenants;

*  changes in competition;

« the loss of any significant customer;

»  increase in cost to maintain internal controls over financial reporting;

» changes in operating strategy or development plans;

« inability to fund the working capital and expansion of our businesses;

+  problems with production equipment;

»  changes in the production efficiency of our facilities;

« adverse results in our contingencies including pending litigation;

+ unplanned downtime at one or more of our chemical facilities;

» changes in production rates at any of our chemical plants;

» inability to obtain necessary raw materials and purchased components;

«  material increases is cost of raw materials;

* material changes in our accounting estimates;

*  significant problems within our production equipment;

e fire or natural disasters;

+ inability to obtain or retain our insurance coverage;

*  obtaining necessary permits;

+ inability to obtain third-party financing;

»  risk associated with drilling natural gas wells;

»  risks associated with proxy contests initiated by dissident stockholders;

+  changes in fertilizer production;

»  reduction in acres planted for crops requiring fertilizer;

* decrease in duties for products we sell resulting in an increase in imported products into the U.S.;

* uncertainties in estimating natural gas reserves;



volatility of natural gas prices;

weather conditions;

increase in imported agricultural products;

other factors described in the MD&A contained in this report, and

other factors described in “Risk Factors” and “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” contained in our 2014 Form 10-K and Forms 10-
Q for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2015, June 30, 2015 and September 30, 2015.
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All forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain, and you are cautioned not to unduly rely upon them. We disclaim any obligation to update any
forward-looking statements or related assumption or to publicly announce the result of any revisions to any of the forward-looking statements in this report to
reflect future events or developments, except as required by law.

Defined Terms

The following is a list of terms used in this report.

AN - Ammonium nitrate.

ARO - Asset retirement obligation.

Baytown Facility - The nitric acid production facility operated by a subsidiary of EDN located in Baytown, Texas.
Borrowers - LSB and certain of its subsidiaries that are party to the Amended Working Capital Revolver Loan.
Carrier - Carrier Corporation.

Chemical Business - LSB’s business segment that manufactures and sells nitrogen-based chemical products for the agricultural, industrial, and mining
markets.

Cherokee Facility - Our chemical production facility located in Cherokee, Alabama.

Climate Control Business - LSB’s business segment manufactures and sells a broad range of HVAC products that include water source and geothermal heat
pumps, hydronic fan coils, large custom air handlers, modular geothermal and other chillers, and other related products and services.

CMEFS - The Dodge Data & Analytics Construction Market Forecasting Service.

Covestro - Formerly Bayer MaterialScience LLC.

EDC - El Dorado Chemical Company.

EDN - El Dorado Nitric LLC

EIA - The U.S. Energy Information Administration.

El Dorado Facility - Our chemical production facility located in El Dorado, Arkansas.

Environmental and Health Laws - Numerous federal, state and local environmental, health and safety laws.
EPA - The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.

ERP - Enterprise resource planning.

FASB - Financial Accounting Standards Board

GHP - Geothermal heat pump.

Green Markets - A Bloomberg BNA business publication providing fertilizer market data news and analysis.

Golsen Group - Jack E. Golsen, our Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors, members of his immediate family, including Barry H. Golsen, a member
of our Board of Directors, entities owned by them and trusts for which they possess voting or dispositive power as trustee.

HDAN - High density ammonium nitrate prills used in the agricultural industry.

KDHE - The Kansas Department of Health and Environmental.

Koch - Koch Nitrogen International Sarl

LDAN - Low density ammonium nitrate prills used in the mining industry.

Indenture - The agreement governing the Senior Secured Notes.

LSB - LSB Industries, Inc.

MD&A - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
MMBtu - Million Metric British thermal units.

Nitric Acid Plant - A new nitric acid plant being constructed at our El Dorado Facility.

NYMEX - New York Mercantile Exchange



Opex - Operational Excellence

Orica - Orica International Pte Ltd.

PCC - Pryor Chemical Company.

PP&E - Plant, property and equipment.

Pryor Facility - Our chemical production facility located in Pryor, Oklahoma.
SEC - The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

Senior Secured Notes - The $425 million aggregate principal amount of 7.75% Senior Secured Notes due August 1, 2019.
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SG&A - Selling, general and administrative expense.
Turnaround - A planned major maintenance activity.
UAN - Urea ammonium nitrate.

U.S. - United States.

Working Capital Revolver Loan - The senior secured revolving credit facility, as amended in June 2015.

PART II
OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings
West Fertilizer Litigation

In 2013, an explosion and fire occurred at the West Fertilizer Co. located in West, Texas, causing death, bodily injury and substantial property damage. West
Fertilizer is not owned or controlled by us, but West Fertilizer had been a customer of EDC, purchasing AN from EDC from time to time. In 2014, EDC and
we were named as defendants, together with other AN manufacturers and brokers that arranged the transport and delivery of AN to West Fertilizer, in the case
styled City of West, Texas v CF Industries, Inc., et al, in the District Court of McLennan County, Texas. Plaintiffs are alleging, among other things, that we
and EDC were negligent in the production and marketing of fertilizer products sold to West Fertilizer resulting in death, personal injury and property damage.
In August 2015, the trail court dismissed plaintiff’s negligence claims against us and EDC based on a duty to inspect, but allowed the plaintiffs to proceed on
claims for design defect and failure to warn. Subsequently, we and EDC entered into a confidential settlement agreement with three family groups that had
claimed wrongful death and bodily injury. While the settlement resolves the claims of what we believe were the highest risk cases in this matter for us, we
continue to be party to litigation related to this explosion by other plaintiffs, in addition to indemnification or defense obligations we may have to other
defendants. We intend to continue to defend these lawsuits vigorously. For further discussion on the West Fertilizer litigation, see Note 8—Commitments and
Contingencies—Legal Matters” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-Q.

Securities Litigation

On September 25, 2105, a case styled Dennis Wilson vs. LSB Industries, Inc., et al., was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of
New York. The plaintiff purports to represent a class of our shareholders and asserts that we violated federal securities laws by allegedly making material
misstatements and omissions about delays and cost overruns at our El Dorado Chemical Company manufacturing facility and about our financial well-being
and prospects. The lawsuit, which also names certain current and former officers, seeks an unspecified amount of damages. For further discussion on the
securities litigation, see Note 8—Commitments and Contingencies—Legal Matters” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-Q.

Other Litigation

The Company is from time to time subject to various legal proceedings and claims arising in the ordinary course of business, including, but not limited to,
examinations by the IRS. For further discussion of legal matters affecting the Company, see “Note 8—Commitments and Contingencies—Legal Matters” in
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-Q.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We do not expect to be able to generate sufficient cash from operations to fund the expansion of our El Dorado chemical plant. Our funding commitment
letter is subject to conditions, including the negotiation and execution of definitive agreements, and we may not successfully complete that financing. We
would then need to take other actions to fund that expansion, which may not be successful. If we cannot raise funds to complete the expansion, we will
need to slow down or stop the expansion.

The anticipated cost to complete the expansion of our El Dorado, Arkansas, chemical plant (the “EDC expansion”) has increased significantly since the
beginning of 2015, from our expectation of $485 million to $520 million total cost to our current estimate of $831 million to $855 million (including
capitalized interest). Based on our current estimate, we are unable to fund the completion of the EDC expansion without additional financing.
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Because cash flows and existing capital resources are insufficient to fund the EDC expansion along with our other debt and operational needs, we have
obtained a commitment for additional funding in the form of $50 million of debt and $210 million of Preferred Stock. The closing of the funding under the
commitment is subject to various customary conditions, including the negotiation and execution of definitive agreements mutually satisfactory to both parties.
No assurance can be given that we will receive the committed financing. If we do not, we will continue to face substantial liquidity problems and will need to
seek additional capital through either the issuance of debt and/or equity or asset sales. If we are unsuccessful we will need to reduce or delay investments and
capital expenditures (including the EDC expansion), dispose of assets or operations, seek additional capital, restructure or refinance debt, or undertake a
combination of some or all of these. These measures may not be successful, may not be completed on economically attractive terms, may not be completed in
time to avoid a default or other liquidity crisis, and may not be adequate for us to fund the EDC expansion and to meet our debt obligations when due. Any
issuance of capital under our commitment letter will be, and any other equity financing is likely to be, dilutive to existing shareholders. Additional financings,
if required, may be on unfavorable terms and may facilitate or constitute a change in control of us.

Further, if we suffer or appear to suffer, from a lack of available liquidity, the evaluation of our creditworthiness by counterparties and rating agencies and the
willingness of third parties to do business with us on current terms or at all could be adversely affected.

If we curtail or terminate the EDC expansion in order to improve our liquidity, it will be unlikely that the EDC expansion will be completed in the second
quarter of 2016, which may result in a loss of our contracts with customers to sell much of the LDAN and excess ammonia production from the El Dorado
plant. The loss of the contracts would further adversely affect our prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, our current estimates of the amount of funding we need to complete the EDC expansion may prove to be incorrect in the future because the costs
may ultimately be higher than our current estimate or our operations may not provide the amount of cash flow we current project, whether because of plan
interruptions or other events. Accordingly, even if we are successful in raising funds for our operations and the EDC expansion based our current estimates,
we may learn in the future that more capital is needed and that we will have to undertake further financing activities or other actions.

All of these events have had, and in the future are expected to have, a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service our debt and may be forced to take other actions to satisfy the obligations under our debt
agreements or to redeem our Preferred Stock, which may not be successful.

Our ability to make scheduled payments on our debt obligations and our redemption obligations for the Preferred Stock to be issued pursuant to our
commitment depends on our financial condition and operating performance, which is subject to the risks previously described for our EDC expansion,
prevailing economic and competitive conditions and to certain financial, business and other factors, some of which may be beyond our control. We may not
be able to maintain a level of cash flows sufficient to pay the principal and interest on our debt, including the $425 million principal amount of our Senior
Secured Notes, the $50 million of new 12% Senior Secured Notes to be issued pursuant to our financing commitment, or our Working Capital Revolver Loan
or to pay the interest and redemption payments on the Preferred Stock to be issued pursuant to our commitment.

If cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt or redemption obligations, we could face substantial liquidity problems and will need to
seek additional capital through either the issuance of debt and/or equity or asset sales. If we are unsuccessful we will need to reduce or delay investments and
capital expenditures, or to dispose of assets or operations, seek additional capital or restructure or refinance debt or redeemable equity. These alternative
measures may not be successful, may not be completed on economically attractive terms or may not be adequate for us to meet our debt or redemption
obligations when due. Additionally, our debt agreements and the operating agreements associated with the issuance of our Preferred Stock limit the use of the
proceeds from many dispositions of assets or operations. As a result, we may not be permitted to use the proceeds from these dispositions to satisfy our debt
obligations.

Further, if we suffer or appear to suffer, from a lack of available liquidity, the evaluation of our creditworthiness by counterparties and rating agencies and the
willingness of third parties to do business with us could be materially and adversely affected. In particular, our credit ratings could be lowered, suspended or
withdrawn entirely at any time by the rating agencies, if in each rating agency’s judgment, circumstances warrant. Downgrades in our long-term debt ratings
generally cause borrowing costs to increase and the potential pool of investors and funding sources to decrease and could trigger liquidity demands pursuant
to the terms of contracts, leases or other agreements. Any future transactions by us, including the issuance of additional debt, the sale of any operating assets,
or any other transaction to manage our liquidity, could result in temporary or permanent downgrades of our credit ratings.
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We may pursue various transactions and initiatives to address our highly leveraged balance sheet and significant cash flow requirements.

If we are unable to close on the debt, preferred stock, and common stock warrants financing commitments, or if those financings are insufficient for our
financing needs, or if we are unable to refinance debt and redemption obligations as they become due, we may be forced to reduce or delay investments and
capital expenditures (including the EDC expansion), dispose of assets or operations, seek additional capital, restructure or refinance debt, or undertake a
combination of some or all of these. Any transactions and initiatives that we may pursue may have significant adverse effects on our business, capital
structure, ownership, liquidity, credit ratings and results of operations. These measures may not be successful, may not produce the desired outcome if
completed, may not be completed on economically attractive terms, and may not be adequate for us to fund the EDC expansion and to meet our debt
obligations when due. This could ultimately adversely affect us, our debtholders, and our shareholders in a material manner.

Our debt agreements and the agreement to sell our Preferred Stock contain covenants and restrictions that limit flexibility in operating our businesses. A
breach of these covenants or restrictions in our debt agreements could result in an event of default under one or more of our debt agreements at different
entities within our capital structure, including as a result of cross acceleration or default provisions.

Our debt agreements and the agreement to sell our Preferred Stock contain various covenants and other restrictions that, among other things, limit flexibility
in operating our businesses. A breach of any of these covenants or restrictions could result in a significant portion of our debt becoming due and payable or
could result in significant contractual liability. Our ability to comply with certain of our covenants and restrictions can be affected by events beyond our
control. These covenants and other restrictions limit our ability to, among other things:

. incur additional debt or issue preferred shares;

. pay dividends on, repurchase or make distributions in respect of capital stock or make other restricted payments;
. make investments;

. sell or transfer assets;

. create liens on assets to secure debt;

. consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets;

. enter into transactions with affiliates;

. designate subsidiaries as unrestricted subsidiaries, and

. repay, repurchase or modify certain subordinated and other material debt.

There are a number of important limitations and exceptions to these covenants and other restrictions.

In addition, certain failures to make payments on significant contract obligations when due constitute a cross-default of some of our debt instruments,
including the indenture governing our Senior Secured Notes and our new 12% Senior Secured Notes. A breach of any of these covenants or restrictions could
result in an event of default under one or more of our debt agreements at different entities within our capital structure, including as a result of cross
acceleration or default provisions. Upon the occurrence of an event of default under one of these debt agreements, our lenders or noteholders could elect to
declare all amounts outstanding under that debt agreement to be immediately due and payable and/or terminate all commitments to extend further credit. Such
actions by those lenders or noteholders could cause cross defaults or accelerations under our other debt. If we were unable to repay those amounts, the lenders
or noteholders could proceed against any collateral granted to them to secure such debt. In the case of a default under debt that is guaranteed, holders of such
debt could also seek to enforce the guarantees. If lenders or noteholders accelerate the repayment of all borrowings, we would likely not have sufficient assets
and funds to repay those borrowings. Such occurrence could result in our or our applicable subsidiary going into bankruptcy, liquidation or insolvency.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
Not applicable

Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities

Not applicable

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

Item 5. Other Information

On November 6, 2015, we obtained from Security Benefit Corporation and one or more of its affiliates a commitment for financing primarily for the purpose
of completing our El Dorado Expansion projects. The commitment is for $260 million of capital in the form of debt, preferred stock, and common stock
warrants, as follows:

. $50 million in Senior Secured Notes issued at par with a 12% annual interest rate, subject to a limited reset based on certain circumstances but in
no event not to exceed a 13.5% annual interest rate. The notes will mature in August 2019, and we have the right to redeem the notes beginning
August 2016 at 106%, August 2017 at 103%, and after August 2018 at par. These notes will be pari passu obligations with and share in the note
collateral of our existing $425 million of Senior Secured Notes issued in 2013, and they will have substantially similar covenants and events of
default.

. $210 million in cumulative redeemable nonconvertible perpetual non-voting preferred stock (“Preferred Stock™) with a 14% annual dividend rate
and an economic participation right equal to 2% of our outstanding common stock before the transaction. The Preferred Stock will rank senior in
right of dividends and liquidation payments to all our other existing capital stock, including the preferred stock held by the Golsen family. We



will have the right to pay dividends on the Preferred Stock in cash or in-kind. We may redeem the Preferred Stock at any time without premium
or penalty at the liquidation preference plus accrued and unpaid dividends plus the value of the participating right. The Preferred Stock is
redeemable at the option of the holder beginning one day after the maturity date of our existing Senior Secured Notes. We may settle the
redemption of the Preferred Stock in cash or common stock, with the consent of the holder, but subject to our obtaining prior stockholder
approval for stock settlement under NYSE requirements.

In connection with this financing, we have also committed to issue the purchaser of the Preferred Stock warrants to purchase
common stock equal to 17.99% of our outstanding common stock before the transaction at an exercise price of $0.01 per share. The
warrant has a ten-year term. The purchaser of the Preferred Stock will also obtain voting rights with our common stock equal to
19.99% of our outstanding common stock before the transaction and will have customary registration rights and pro rata
preemptive rights on equity issuance, subject to customary exceptions.

The purchase agreement for the Preferred Stock will also contain certain reporting and operating covenants that will continue until
the purchaser ceases to hold at least 10% of the Preferred Stock.

The purchaser of the Preferred Stock will also have the right to appoint three nominees to our Board as replacements for three
existing independent directors effective at the closing of the Preferred Stock. The purchaser of the Preferred Stock has also
obtained a commitment from Jack E. Golsen, Barry H. Golsen, and Steven J. Golsen that they will maintain ownership of at least
75% of the stock they currently hold in us, subject to certain exceptions, and a commitment that the Golsens will have the right to
nominate two directors to our Board. The board rights will be reduced or eliminated based on the number of warrants or common
stock issued pursuant to the warrants that the purchaser retains.

The Company will pay a commitment fee of 2% ($5.2 million) on the full amount of the committed financing and a funding fee of 2% (totaling
$5.2 million) upon issuance of each of the Senior Secured Notes and the Preferred Stock.

The commitment is subject to the negotiation and execution of definitive documentation and other customary conditions. We have been informed that
approvals under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act will not be required for the transactions. As a result, we expect to issue the Senior Secured Notes on or soon after
November 9, 2015, and to complete the issuance of the Preferred Stock, warrants and related agreements in November or early December. Although we have
entered into exclusivity with the purchaser, we will pay a fee of 3% of the Preferred Stock commitment if the Preferred Stock and warrants are not issued in
certain circumstances.

The securities to be issued pursuant to the commitment letter are offered and sold in reliance on an exemption from registration under the Securities Act of
1933 afforded by Section 4(a)(2) and Rule 506(b) of Regulation D.

This information is provided in lieu of a filing pursuant to Items 1.01, 2.03, 3.02. and 3.03 of Form 8-K, as permitted under SEC in reliance on the SEC’s
compliance and disclosure interpretations.
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Item 6. Exhibits

(a)  Exhibits The Company has included the following exhibits in this report:

10.1 *

10.2 (a) *
10.3 (a)
10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7 *

10.8*

31.1 (a)
31.2 (a)
32.1 (b)
32.2 (b)
101.INS (a)
101.SCH (a)
101.CAL (a)
101.DEF (a)
101.LAB (a)
101.PRE (a)

(a) Filed herewi

Severance and Release Agreement, dated September 1, 2015, by and between the Company and Barry H. Golsen (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 1-7677, filed with the SEC on September 4, 2015).

Severance and Release Agreement, dated November 3, 2015, by and between the Company and David R. Goss.
Independent Contractor Agreement, dated September 30, 2015, by and among the Company and Circle S. Consulting LLC.

Indemnification Agreement, dated October 14, 2015, between the Company and Jack E. Golsen, together with a schedule identifying other
substantially identical agreements between the Company and each of the other directors identified on the schedule (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 1-7677, filed with the SEC on October 19, 2015).

Indemnification Agreement, dated October 14, 2015, between the Company and David M. Shear, together with a schedule identifying other
substantially identical agreements between the Company and each of its executive officers identified on the schedule (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 1-7677, filed with the SEC on October 19, 2015).

Engineering Procurement and Construction Contract, Amendment No.1 dated October 20, 2015, between El Dorado Ammonia L.L.C. and
SAIC Constructors, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 1-7677, filed
with the SEC on October 26, 2015)

Employment Agreement, dated September 1, 2015, by and between the Company and Daniel D. Greenwell (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, File No.1-7677, filed with the SEC on October 30, 2015).

Commitment Letter dated November 6, 2015, by and between the Company and LSB Funding LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
99.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 1-7677, filed with the SEC on November 6, 2015) (although this exhibit was
initially furnished pursuant to Item 2.02 of Form 8-K, it is expressly incorporated by reference herein and deemed filed).

Certification of Daniel D. Greenwell, Interim Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Section 302.
Certification of Mark T. Behrman, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Section 302.

Certification of Daniel D. Greenwell, Interim Chief Executive Officer, furnished pursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Section 906.
Certification of Mark T. Behrman, Chief Financial Officer, furnished pursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Section 906.

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

th

(b)  Furnished herewith
* Executive Compensation Plan or Arrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Company has caused the undersigned, duly authorized, to sign this
report on its behalf on this 9th day of November 2015.

LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.

/s/ Mark T. Behrman

Mark T. Behrman

Executive Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial
Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Harold L. Rieker, Jr.

Harold L. Rieker, Jr.

Vice President and Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 10.2
SEVERANCE AND RELEASE AGREEMENT

This Severance and Release Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered by and between David R. Goss (“Executive”) and LSB Industries, Inc. (the
“Company”) (collectively, the “Parties™), effective as of December 31, 2015 (“Termination Date”).

WHEREAS, Executive resigned from employment with the Company by letter dated September 25, 2015;
WHEREAS, the parties have agreed to terms of severance benefits in exchange for a release of claims in a form agreeable to the Company;
WHEREAS, this Agreement sets forth the Parties’ expectations and agreements with respect to the severance benefits and the release of claims; and,

WHEREAS, in exchange for the severance benefits, Executive desires to release any and all claims whatsoever, known or unknown, that he has or may
have against the Company, its affiliated entities, and all those entities’ employees and representatives, as explained more fully below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in exchange for the promises made by one another in this Agreement, which both parties acknowledge to be valuable promises
sufficient to justify the promises of the other, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Resignation. Effective on the Termination Date the employment relationship between the Company and Executive will be terminated, and the
Company will be relieved of Executive’s duties in all respects. Executive resigns from any position as an officer of the Company and as a director, officer,
manager, partner or similar position of each subsidiary or affiliate of the Company.

2. Severance Payments to Executive; Other Consideration.

(a) The Company agrees to pay to Executive a severance payment in the total amount of $310,000 (the “Severance Payment”). The payment shall
be made to Executive in installments on the 15th of the month as follows;

January, 2016 $ 25,833
February, 2016 $ 25,833
March, 2016 $ 25,834
April, 2016 $ 0
May, 2016 $ 0
June, 2016 $ 0
July, 2016 $103,334
August, 2016 $ 25,833
September, 2016 $ 25,833
October, 2016 $ 25,833
November, 2016 $ 25,834
December, 2016 $ 25,833
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provided Executive executes this Agreement and the accompanying General Release, and Executive does not exercise his statutory right to rescind this
Agreement and the General Release attached as Exhibit A. In the event of Executive’s death payment will be made to his estate or designee.

(b) The Company will pay to Executive a lump sum payment of $7,131.24 on or before January 15, 2016.
(c) The Company will transfer to Executive without charge the 2013 Lexus GS 350 that he is currently using for business purposes.
(d) All payments shall be subject to withholding for applicable taxes and other ordinary payroll deductions.

(e) The Company will continue to pay for Executive’s officers and director’s liability policy covering any claim which may arise as a result of his
former employment with the Company, its affiliates or subdivisions.

Executive is expressly acknowledging that no other payments, whether salary, bonus, expenses or otherwise, remain unidentified and payable except for the

Severance Payments. Specifically, Executive acknowledges that as a result of his resignation, any benefit otherwise payable under the Nonqualified Benefit

Agreement dated January 1, 1992 and amended April 1, 1993 shall become null and void on the last day of employment, and such agreement shall terminate
with no further payment obligations to the Executive or his beneficiaries pursuant to the terms of Section 6 of such agreement.

4. General Release. As a condition to receiving the Severance Payment and the COBRA supplement above, Executive will return an executed copy of
this Agreement and the attached General Release within twenty-one (21) days of the date of this Agreement. By signing this Agreement, Executive is
agreeing that once seven (7) days have passed from the date he signs the Release, he will not attempt to revoke or rescind the General Release at any time in
the future. In addition, Executive is representing that he fully understands the terms of this Agreement and the General Release and that he has had an
opportunity to seek legal advice regarding the General Release and this Agreement, if he desires to do so, before signing these documents. Executive is also
representing to the Company that he has not commenced any action or filed any administrative charge or complaint against the Company in regard to his
employment between the Termination Date and the date he signs the Agreement and General Release.

5. Requests to Provide Information and Future Activities and Litigation Assistance. At any time in the future, if Executive receives any subpoena
or court order to testify or provide information regarding the Company or his past employment with the Company, Executive will notify the Company at 16
South Pennsylvania Avenue, P.O. Box 754, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73107, Attn: General Counsel in writing within five (5) days of receipt or by email to
an address designated by the Company within twenty-four (24) hours if the subpoena or court order requires compliance sooner than five (5) days. Further,
Executive will not be employed or otherwise act as an
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expert witness or consultant, or in any similar paid capacity in any litigation, arbitrations, administrative proceedings, governmental inquiries, external
investigations or hearings involving the Company. Upon reasonable notice, Executive will continue to cooperate with and assist the Company and its
representatives and attorneys as requested with respect to any litigation, arbitrations, administrative proceedings, governmental inquiries, investigations (both
internal and external) or any other matters concerning or relating to the above by being available for interviews, depositions and/or testimony in regard to any
matters in which he is or has been involved or with respect to which he has relevant information without the need for a subpoena. If Executive is required to
testify at deposition and/or trial, Executive will be paid compensation for his preparation and appearance time in an amount agreed upon by Executive and
Company.

6. Confidentiality of Information. Executive agrees that, except with the prior written consent of the Company or if previously publically disclosed by
the Company, he will not, at any time after the date of this Agreement, make any independent use of or disclose to any other person or organization, including
any governmental agency, the terms and provisions of this Agreement and the discussions surrounding it, as well as any of the Company’s confidential,
proprietary information or trade secrets, for a period of twenty-four (24) months following the Termination Date; provided that this provision does not bar
disclosure of (1) information in the public domain; (2) information required to be disclosed by law, rule, or regulation; and (3) information previously
disclosed to a third-party by the Company who in turn discloses the information to Executive. This shall apply to any information which is of a special and
unique value and includes, without limitation, both written and unwritten information relating to operations and marketing; business planning and strategies;
finance; accounting; costs of providing service; operating and maintenance costs; and pricing matters. This obligation regarding the Company’s confidential,
proprietary information or trade secrets is in addition to, but does not replace, any prior agreement between Executive and the Company regarding
confidentiality. This paragraph does not prohibit Executive from reporting possible violations of federal and/or state law or regulation to any governmental
agency or entity, including, but not limited to the Department of Justice, the Securities and Exchange Commission, Congress or any agency Inspector General
and/or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (or a similar fair employment practices agency of Executive’s State of residence or employment) or
with other similarly situated employees. Subject to applicable law, Executive covenants and agrees that Executive shall not in any way publicly disparage, call
into disrepute, or otherwise defame or slander the Company or any of its subsidiaries, in any manner that would materially damage the business or reputation
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The Company covenants and agrees, on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, that neither the Company, any of it
subsidiaries nor any of the officers or directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries shall in any way publicly disparage, call into disrepute, or otherwise
defame or slander Executive. Nothing in this Section 8 shall preclude or restrict Executive or the Company or any of the subsidiaries of the Company from
making truthful statements, or the Executive’s retention of documents that he is required to retain or disclose in his capacity as a Director of the Company,
including, without limitation, those that are required by applicable law, regulation or in connection with a legal process or proceeding, and making of such
statements shall not be in violation of this Section.
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7. Additional Warranties. Executive represents and warrants that as of this date he has suffered no work related injury with the Company and that he
will not file a claim for worker’s compensation benefits arising from any incident occurring as of the date of this Agreement. Executive further represents that
this is an individually-negotiated severance agreement as contemplated by the federal Older Worker Benefit Protection Act and that Executive is not, and will
not hereafter assert that he is, entitled to any greater consideration period or other information in connection with his waiver of rights under the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act that he has received in this Agreement and the General Release, including the Notice.

8. Severability. Executive and the Company agree that if any portion of this Agreement or the General Release or the application of their terms to any
person or circumstance or claim is determined, to any extent, to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement and the General Release, or the
application of such terms to any other persons, circumstances or claims shall not be affected and that this Agreement and General Release shall continue to be
valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

9. Attorneys. Executive acknowledges that this Agreement is a binding legal document with legal consequences, and that the Company has suggested
that he, within the time limits identified above, and to the extent he deems necessary or appropriate, seek competent legal counsel to determine the legal effect
of this Agreement, at his own expense.

10. Transition of Business and Future Activities. Upon receipt of reasonable notice, Executive agrees that he shall cooperate with and assist the
Company in the transition of any ongoing projects or other job duties or responsibilities, and take all reasonable steps to ensure that the Company’s interests
are not adversely affected due to the termination of the Parties” employment relationship. Upon reasonable notice, Executive shall make himself available to
the Company and the Company’s attorneys, without the necessity of a subpoena or other process, in connection with any pending or future matter about
which he may have relevant information or regarding which he had direct involvement because of his prior employment with the Company.

electronic copies of documents or data related to the business of the Company (or its related persons or entities), computer files, laptop computers, home
computers, credit cards, building keys, mobile phones, and the like, with the exception of automobile currently provided by the Company for Executive’s
business use that will be transferred to Executive under Section 2(c).

12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oklahoma, without regard to its
choice of law provisions.

13. Amendments. The Agreement may be amended only by the written agreement signed by both Executive and a duly authorized representative of
the Company.
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14. Section 409A. It is intended that this Agreement comply with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the
Treasury regulations and other guidance promulgated or issued thereunder (“Section 409A”), to the extent that the requirements of Section 409A are
applicable thereto, and after application of all available exemptions, including but not limited to, the “short-term deferral rule” and the “involuntary separation
pay plan exception,” and the provisions of this Agreement shall be construed in a manner consistent with that intention. Any provision required for
compliance with Section 409A that is omitted from this Agreement shall be incorporated herein by reference and shall apply retroactively, if necessary, and be
deemed a part of this Agreement to the same extent as though expressly set forth herein. To the extent Section 409A is determined to apply to this Agreement,
any reference to the Executive’s termination of employment will mean a cessation of the employment relationship between the Executive and the Company
which constitutes a “separation from service” as determined in accordance with Section 409A. If Executive is deemed on the date of termination to be a
“specified employee,” within the meaning of that term under Section 409A(a)(2)(B) of the Code and using the identification methodology selected by the
Company from time to time, or if none, the default methodology, then with regard to any payment or the providing of any benefit made under this Agreement,
to the extent required to be delayed in compliance with Section 409A(a)(2)(B) of the Code, and any other payment or the provision of any other benefit that is
required to be delayed in compliance with Section 409A(a)(2)(B) of the Code, such payment or benefit shall not be made or provided prior to the earlier of
(i) the expiration of the six-month period measured from the date of Executive’s “separation from service” or (ii) the date of death. On the first day of the
seventh month following the date of “separation from service,” or if earlier, on the date of death, all payments delayed pursuant to this subparagraph and
Section 409A (whether they would have otherwise been payable in a single sum or in installments in the absence of such delay) shall be paid or reimbursed to
Executive in a lump sum, and any remaining payments and benefits due under this Agreement shall be paid or provided in accordance with the normal
payment dates specified for them herein.

In addition, for purposes of applying the provisions of Section 409A to this Agreement, each separately identified amount to which an Executive is entitled
under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate payment within the meaning of Section 409A, and any series of installment payments under this
Agreement, including installment payments set forth in Section 2(a), shall be treated as a right to a series of separate payments under Section 409A, including
Treas. Reg. Section 1.409A-2(b)(2)(iii). The Company shall not have any liability to Executive with respect to tax obligations that result under any tax law
and makes no representation with respect to the tax treatment of the payments and/or benefits provided under this Agreement.
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The Parties to this Agreement have read the foregoing agreement and fully understand each and every provision contained herein. The Parties agree that this
Agreement, together with the General Release, constitutes the entire agreement between Executive and the Company, except for the terms and provisions of
his Employment Agreement that remain in full force and effect. The Parties have executed this Agreement on the dates shown below.

EXECUTIVE

/s/ David R. Goss Dated: 11/3/15
David R. Goss

COMPANY
LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
By: /s/William F. Murdy Dated: 11/3/15

William F. Murdy, Chairman
Compensation Committee
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EXHIBIT A
GENERAL RELEASE

NOTICE. Various laws, including Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1866, the Pregnancy Discrimination Act of 1978, the
Equal Pay Act, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans With Disabilities
Act, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act and the Veterans Reemployment Rights Act (all as amended from time to time), prohibit employment
discrimination based on sex, race, color, national origin, religion, age, disability, eligibility for covered employee benefits and veteran status. You may also
have rights under laws such as the Older Worker Benefit Protection Act of 1990, the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Act of 1988, the Fair Labor
Standards Act, the Family and Medical Leave Act, the Occupational Safety and Health Act and other federal, state and/or municipal statutes, orders or
regulations pertaining to labor, employment and/or employee benefits. These laws are enforced through the United States Department of Labor, including the
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, and various state and municipal labor departments, fair employment boards, human rights commissions and
similar agencies.

The federal Older Worker Benefit Protection Act requires that you have at least twenty-one (21) days, if you want it, to consider whether you wish to sign a
release such as this one in connection with a special, individualized severance package. You have until the close of business twenty-one (21) days from the
date you receive this General Release to make your decision. You may not sign this General Release until, at the earliest, your official date of separation from
employment.

BEFORE EXECUTING THIS GENERAL RELEASE YOU SHOULD REVIEW THESE DOCUMENTS CAREFULLY AND CONSULT WITH YOUR
ATTORNEY.

You may revoke this General Release within seven (7) days after you sign it and it shall not become effective or enforceable until that revocation period has
expired. If you do not accept the severance package and sign and return this General Release, or if you exercise your right to revoke the General Release after
signing it, you will not be eligible for the special, individualized severance package. Any revocation must be in writing and must be received by LSB
Industries, Inc., 16 South Pennsylvania Avenue, P.O. Box 754, Oklahoma City, OK 73107, Attn: General Counsel within the seven-day period following your
execution of this General Release.




GENERAL RELEASE

In consideration of the special, individualized severance package offered to me by LSB Industries, Inc., I hereby release and discharge L.SB Industries, Inc.
and its predecessors, successors, affiliates, parent, subsidiaries and partners and each of those entities” employees, officers, directors and agents (hereafter
collectively referred to as the “Company”) from all claims, liabilities, demands, and causes of action, known or unknown, fixed or contingent, which I may
have or claim to have against the Company either as a result of my past employment with the Company and/or the severance of that relationship and/or
otherwise, and hereby waive any and all rights I may have with respect to and promise not to file a lawsuit to assert any such claims, provided that nothing
contained in this General Release shall constitute a release of the Company from any obligations it may have to the undersigned (a) this Severance and
Release Agreement,; or (b) relating to any rights of indemnification and/or defense under the Company’s certificate of incorporation, bylaws, or coverage
under officers and directors insurance.

This General Release includes, but is not limited to, claims arising under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1866, the
Pregnancy Discrimination Act of 1978, the Equal Pay Act, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973, the Americans With Disabilities Act, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act or 1974 and the Veterans Reemployment Rights Act (all as
amended from time to time). This General Release also includes, but is not limited to, any rights I may have under the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act
of 1990, the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Act of 1988, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Family and Medical Leave Act, the Occupational Safety and
Health Act and any other federal, state and/or municipal statutes, orders or regulations pertaining to labor, employment and/or employee benefits. This
General Release also applies to any claims or rights I may have growing out of any legal or equitable restrictions on the Company’s rights not to continue an
employment relationship with its employees, including any express or implied employment contracts, and to any claims I may have against the Company for
fraudulent inducement or misrepresentation, defamation, wrongful termination or other retaliation claims in connection with workers’ compensation or
alleged “whistleblower” status or on any other basis whatsoever.

It is specifically agreed, however, that this General Release does not have any effect on any rights or claims I may have against the Company which arise after
the date I execute this General Release.

I have carefully reviewed and fully understand all the provisions of the Agreement and General Release, including the foregoing Notice. I have not relied on
any representation or statement, oral or written, by the Company or any of its representatives, which is not set forth in those documents.

Except as noted above, the Agreement and this General Release, including the foregoing Notice, set forth the entire agreement between me and the Company
with respect to this subject. I understand that my receipt and retention of the separation benefits covered by the Agreement are contingent not only on my
execution of this General Release, but also on my with my obligations that survive and continue in effect in accordance with this Agreement. I acknowledge
that the Company gave me twenty-one (21) days to consider whether I wish to accept or reject the

A-2



separation benefits I am eligible to receive under the Agreement in exchange for this General Release. I also acknowledge that the Company advised me to
seek independent legal advice as to these matters, if I chose to do so. I hereby represent and state that I have taken such actions and obtained such information
and independent legal or other advice, if any, that I believed were necessary for me to fully understand the effects and consequences of the Agreement and
General Release prior to signing those documents.

Dated this 3 day of November, 2015.

/s/ David R. Goss

David R. Goss



Exhibit 10.3

AGREEMENT BETWEEN LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
AND
CIRCLE S CONSULTING LLC

AGREEMENT IS HEREBY MADE between the CLIENT and INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR set forth below according to the following terms,
conditions, and provisions:

1.

IDENTITY OF CLIENT. CLIENT is identified as follows:

Name: LSB Industries, Inc.

Address: 16 South Pennsylvania Avenue
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73107

Telephone: (405) 235-4546

E-mail: dgreenwell@lsbindustries.com

Contact: Dan Greenwell

IDENTITY OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR - “IC.” The Independent Contractor (hereafter “IC”) is identified as follows:

Name: Circle S. Consulting LLC
Richard S. Sanders, President
Address: 18547 East Crooked Oak Drive

Owasso, Oklahoma 74005
Telephone: (918) 516-2277

EIN ok ok ek ok skek

JOB TO BE PERFORMED. President of IC agrees to perform the following job: Executive Vice President, Chemical Manufacturing, which involves
oversight of chemical plant operations at the Client’s chemical subsidiary facilities. Initially, IC is engaged for 20 hours per week. Schedule changes
shall be agreed upon by client and IC. IC shall be solely responsible for determining the manner in which services are performed pursuant to this
agreement, the sole interest of CLIENT being to ensure that IC’s work product conforms to CLIENT’S requirements.

FACILITIES. CLIENT will provide the following facilities for the use of IC in the performance of its services: office space while residing in the LSB
offices in Oklahoma City, OK. IC shall furnish all other facilities, tools, equipment and supplies necessary for the proper performance of its
responsibilities hereunder. Upon termination of this agreement for any cause or reason, IC shall promptly vacate and return to CLIENT all facilities and
property of Client used by it in the performance of its services under this agreement.

SERVICE PAY AND TERMS OF PAYMENT. CLIENT shall pay IC $200 per hour worked. IC shall invoice CLIENT on an agreed upon schedule
based on a minimum of 20 hours/week.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES. CLIENT shall reimburse IC for all business related travel and expenses associated with travel to the chemical
plant facilities and other required business meetings.

FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL PAYROLL TAXES. Neither federal, nor state, nor local income tax, nor payroll tax of any kind shall be withheld or
paid by CLIENT on behalf of IC or the employees of IC. IC shall not be treated as an employee with respect to the services performed hereunder for
federal or state tax purposes.

NOTICE TO IC REGARDING ITS TAX DUTIES AND LIABILITIES. IC understands that IC is responsible to pay, according to law, IC’s income tax.
If IC is not a corporation, IC further understands that IC may be liable for self-employment (social security) tax, to be paid by IC according to law.as

FRINGE BENEFITS. Because IC is engaged in IC’s own independently established business, IC is not eligible for, and shall not participate in, any
employee pension, health, or other fringe benefit plan, of CLIENT.

EMPLOYEES. IC shall be solely responsible for the payment of all salaries, wages, benefits and other compensation of every kind to its employees,
and for the withholding of income tax and the deduction and payment of all state and federal payroll taxes, deductions and contributions with respect to
such employees. IC shall indemnify CLIENT and hold it harmless against any claim or liability for any such payment, withholding, deduction or
contribution.

CLIENT NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR WORKERS’ COMPENSATION. No workers’ compensation insurance shall be obtained by CLIENT concerning
IC or the employees of IC, and IC shall maintain workers’ compensation insurance for its employees as required by law.

CLIENT NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR INJURY OR LOSS. Client shall not be responsible for any injury or loss suffered by IC or any employee of IC.
IC shall indemnify CLIENT and hold it harmless against any claim or liability for any injury of loss.

CLIENT NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR LIABILITY INSURANCE. No liability insurance shall be obtained by CLIENT concerning IC or the employees
of IC.

TERM OF AGREEMENT. This agreement shall begin on September 29, 2015 and shall terminate at completion of the projects which require services
unless the agreement is extended by CLIENT at CLIENT’s option. CLIENT may terminate this agreement effective immediately at any time without
cause upon written notice to IC. IC may terminate this agreement by giving fifteen (15) days’ written notice to CLIENT.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.
21.

NON-WAIVER. The failure of either party to exercise any of its rights under this agreement, for a breach thereof, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of
such rights or a waiver of any subsequent breach.

NO AUTHORITY TO BIND CLIENT. IC has no authority to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of CLIENT. This agreement does not create
a partnership between the parties.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. IC declares that IC has complied with all federal, state, and local laws regarding business
permits, certificates, and licenses that may be required to carry out the work to be performed under this agreement.

CONFIDENTIALITY AND ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT. IC shall sign a confidentiality and assignment agreement with client, the consideration for
which is hereby acknowledged as received and the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference.

CHOICE OF LAW. Any dispute under this agreement or related to this agreement shall be decided in accordance with the laws of the State of
Oklahoma.

SEVERABILITY. If any part of this agreement shall be held, unenforceable, the rest of this agreement will nevertheless remain in full force and effect.

AMENDMENTS. This agreement may be supplemented, amended or revised only in writing by agreement of the parties.

EXECUTED AND EFFECTIVE this 30th day of September, 2015.

LSB INDUSTRIES, INC. CIRCLE S. CONSULTING LLC
By: /s/ Daniel Greenwell /s/ Richard S. Sanders, President
Title: Interim CEO Name: Richard Sanders

/s/ Richard S. Sanders
Richard S. Sanders, Individually




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Daniel D. Greenwell, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of LSB Industries, Inc. (the “registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

<)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in this case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 9, 2015

/s/ Daniel D. Greenwell

Daniel D. Greenwell
Interim Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Mark T. Behrman, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of LSB Industries, Inc. (the “registrant™);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

<)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in this case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 9, 2015

/s/ Mark T. Behrman

Mark T. Behrman

Executive Vice President of Finance
and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of LSB Industries, Inc. (“LSB”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2015 as filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”). I, Daniel D. Greenwell, Interim Chief Executive Officer of LSB, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
81350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of LSB.
/s/ Daniel D. Greenwell
Daniel D. Greenwell

Interim Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

November 9, 2015

This certification is furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission solely for purpose of 18 U.S.C. §1350 subject to the knowledge standard contained
therein, and not for any other purpose.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of LSB Industries, Inc. (“LSB”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2015 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Mark T. Behrman, Executive Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer of LSB,
certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of LSB.

/s/ Mark T. Behrman

Mark T. Behrman

Executive Vice President of Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

November 9, 2015

This certification is furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission solely for purpose of 18 U.S.C. §1350 subject to the knowledge standard contained
therein and not for any other purpose.



